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Director’s notes
The past year was an exceptional one for AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. In early May 2016, the Company embarked on the creation of a new structure incorporating a number of important changes. The very first, and most crucial step, was the formulation
of a new corporate strategy that set the Company’s course for the next ten years. The change in strategy also called for a change in
how the Company is organized so that its recently defined goals could be met. Management has been newly structured and organized up to a second and third tier. The key element in the new organization is that its structure is based on the concept of a unified
management approach proposed by the entire management team. We also launched several projects to improve the Company’s
premises and infrastructure, which includes investing not only in buildings, but also in information systems. Moreover, we put in place
better conditions for the personal development of Aero employees, whom we consider to be our Company’s greatest asset.
As concerns actual strategy, the main goal is to strengthen Aero’s role as a manufacturer of custom aircraft and to become a market
leader in trainer and light combat aircraft. We also want to leave our mark in the aero-structures business; our priority, of course, is
to enhance the quality and level of collaborative programs. The third pillar of our strategy is our MRO business, i.e. maintenance,
repair and overhaul services, where we are actively working to renew relationships with the huge community of our aircraft users.
Leaving aside the above, I would like to touch on the financial and production results we achieved last year. First, there was a change in the
structure of sales, where in contrast to prior years military production comprised the majority of the turnover. This had a favorable impact
on EBITDA, which reached a record 876 million crowns before adjustments associated with discontinuing certain programs.
We also saw great progress in our industrial development. I will first mention that we reestablished the L-159 light attack jet production line and, 13 years after discontinuing its serial production, we supplied this aircraft to one of our foreign customers. This success
confirms our ability to assemble a light attack jet; we continue to have the capacity and technology. We also enjoyed significant manufacturing success in the area of aero-structures. With the launch of one of our key programs – the production of the wing leading edge
for the CSeries civilian aircraft – we met customer expectations and needs, making Aero a top supplier for our Canadian foreign partner
Bombardier.

„

“

I BELIEVE THAT IN THE LAST
YEAR WE HAVE STARTED NEW ERA
OF AERO AS A PROUD PRODUCER
OF ITS OWN AIRCRAFT.

And finally, from the perspective of the customer, who is key, I consider our successful launch of a series of meetings for users of
our aircraft with the first L-39 Users Group Conference to be a significant milestone of 2016. I’m convinced this conference was an
excellent start to the forging of long-term relationships with customers and will help us find clients for our new L-39NG aircraft.
I believe that last year marked the start of a new era for AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. as a proud manufacturer of custom
aircraft offering the world’s best and most flexible solutions in the fields of pilot training, air combat and aerobatics.

giuseppe giordo,
President and CEO of the company
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11 000

Aero Vodochody is historically the largest producer of military jet trainers in the world.
It has delivered more than 11 thousand aircraft and hundreds of them are still flying on all continents.
We are proud of the excellent maneuverability of the aircraft made
in Aero and their ability to operate in all climatic conditions.
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Company profile
Aero is the largest
aviation manufacturer in the Czech
Republic. It is
engaged in the
development,
production, sale
and servicing of
military and civil
aviation technology.

corporate profile
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (hereinafter also referred to as Aero) is a public limited liability company
incorporated on December 15, 2011 (as TULAREO a.s., its new name AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. was
entered in the Commercial Register on September 19, 2012). The company’s registered office is located
at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště No. 374, postcode 250 70. It was entered in the Commercial Register
on December 15, 2011 at the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 17749, Identification No: 24194204,
Tax Identification No: CZ24194204.
The company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE, a.s. is in accordance with the Project of dividing the company
AERO Vodochody a.s., the successor company of AERO Vodochody a.s. thus continuing the rich history of
that company. Until end of 2006, almost 100% of the shares of AERO Vodochody a.s. were owned by the
Czech Consolidation Agency. On January 4, 2007, the Penta Group became the sole shareholder of AERO
Vodochody a.s. and it launched the company restructuring project in the same year. In the years 2007 through
2011, AERO Vodochody a.s. achieved accumulated net profit at the amount of CZK 1,523 mil.

our mission
To strengthen the
position of Aero as
a global player in
the aerospace and
defense industry,
known worldwide
as a manufacturer
of its own aircraft,
with a significant
position also in the
aero-structures
market. To create
added value for
customers, partners,
owners, employees
and the whole
of society.

changes in the company management
In May 2016, after seven years, the President and Chairman of the Board of Directors was changed. Ladislav Šimek was succeeded by Giuseppe Giordo from Italy. In the years 2011 - 2015, the new President
of Aero, Giuseppe Giordo, was CEO of Alenia Aermacchi, the largest aerospace manufacturer in Italy, with
more than 11 thousand employees, however, he has actually worked in the aviation industry since 1990.
Subsequently, the management of the company was joined by other experienced foreign managers. The
position of Strategy, PR & Chief of Staff was taken by Damiano Cotula, the post of Secretary General
by Guido Mule', the post of Chief Business Officer by Massimo Ghione and the position of Chief Information
Officer by Antonio Di Micco. The new leader of the key development program of AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s., the project of the new trainer L-39NG, is now Marco Venanzetti who assumed the position
of Executive Vice President for the L-39NG program.

As of January 1, 2012 the manufacturing part of AERO Vodochody a.s. was separated to form AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., the 100% owner of which is also the Penta Group. The registered capital of Aero
is CZK 1,002 mil. and has been fully paid up.
Aero is the biggest manufacturer of aviation technology in the Czech Republic. It is engaged in the development, production, sale and servicing of military and civil aviation technology. It focuses on the development,
production and maintenance of its own aircraft and on cooperation with leading aerospace manufacturers
in international cooperative projects. As part of the military program, it has been a longtime partner of the
armed forces of several countries, in particular the Armed Forces of the Czech Republic. It has an established quality management system certified in accordance with AS 9100/ ISO 9001 and is the holder of all the
relevant company attestations and certificates as a whole and for partial processes in accordance with
national and international standards. In terms of its own final production, it holds authorization for individual activities, i.e. authorization for development, manufacture, maintenance and maintenance training.
As a subcontractor it holds partial approvals of the Quality Management System and special processes from
individual customers and under the NADCAP accreditation.
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Company profile
The new management of the company
headed by Giuseppe
Giordo has defined
six main strategic
objectives.

our strategy
In 2016, there was a significant change in the corporate strategy which defines in detail the steps leading to
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. once again becoming a major global manufacturer of own aircraft (AOM - aircraft
original manufacturer). The new management of the company headed by Giuseppe Giordo has defined six
main strategic objectives.
• To regain the position as the leading manufacturer of light combat and training aircraft.
• To promote growth through the provision of additional servicing and redefinition of the customer support
system and the business model.
• To optimize the portfolio of contractual relations in the aero-structures and to develop in particular the
design-to-build programs and programs bringing specific technology.
• To find opportunities for further business growth through potential new segments, new industrial
partnerships.
• To strive for sustainable excellence of production both in terms of meeting customer requirements
and in terms of quality.
• To continue to develop the organization in terms of competence, international corporate culture and
the ability to attract and retain the best human resources.

12

Aero is the largest
aviation manufacturer in the Czech
Republic and one
of the oldest aircraft
manufacturers
in the world, therefore, it must protect
this important
legacy and heritage
by ensuring
a reputation
of uniqueness,
integrity
and credibility.

code of ethics and anti-corruption code
Aero is the largest aviation manufacturer in the Czech Republic and one of the oldest aircraft manufacturers in the world, therefore, it must protect this important legacy and heritage by ensuring a reputation
of uniqueness, integrity and credibility. Our heritage for future generations can be preserved only by
respecting the highest standards of conduct in dealing with people, organizations and governments.
Aero’s Code of Ethics covers a wide range of trade practices and procedures, sets out the basic principles
of business integrity in the management of Aero and helps promote corporate culture which aims to cultivate our brand every day.
The Anti-corruption Code aims to strengthen preventative structures and to highlight the company policy
of strictly rejecting any unlawful business practices, especially corruption.

a neW organiZational structure
The new organizational structure has been introduced on the company based new vision and strategy. Main
elements are:
• Consolidate a single corporate strategy.
• Instead of the original divisions (Operations, Aero-structures, Defence & MRO, Engineering) to unify the
company and to divide it transparently into operational units, programs (focused on meeting deadlines,
quality and costs), business activities and strategic planning.
• To highlight the importance of the key strategic project (L-39NG), which is reported directly to the Chairman of the Board.
• To strengthen marketing and sales activities.
• To gain a competitive advantage by the efficient use of all available and very valuable human resources
through consolidation of the two engineering teams.
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Company profile
Key events of 2016
January:
The activities related
to the operation of the
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
airport were taken
over by the company
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. In connection with this, the
Articles of Association
were changed in that
the scope of business
(activity) was expanded
to cover the operation
of the airport and the
related services.
Aero signed a contract
with the German company MT Aero-space to
supply three packages
of parts for the Airbus
A400M and A350

14

february:
Four Iraqi pilots completed their training on
the L-159

First flight of
CS300 prototype

the

march:
Aero sent three L-159s
to the company Draken International

may:
On of May 15, 2016
Giuseppe Giordo was
named the new Company President.
Aero signed a contract
with Singaporean company ST Aerospace for
the passenger to freight
conversions of a part
of the shell structure of the A320/321
aircraft.

July:
The CSeries program
changes to run directly
between Aero and
Bombardier Belfast,
without the Sonaca
company.
Reinstallment of L-159
production jigs.
The prototype of the
KC-390 aircraft landed
at Aero on its first
trip outside South
America.
The first CS100 aircraft
began flying for the
customer - the Swiss
company Swiss Air.

september:
Contracts were signed
with the Czech Armed
Forces on servicing the
L-159s and L-39s and
on reconstructing three
L-159s to a two-seat
version of the L-159T2
(Framework service
contract valid until November 30, 2022 at the
amount of CZK 1.68
billion excluding VAT
and the contract for the
reconstruction of three
L-159s at the amount of
CZK 457 million excluding VAT).
The Aero management
introduced a new corporate strategy, which
includes refocusing on
the production of own
aircraft.
Aero held the first conference of L-39 users,
which brought together representatives
from13 countries from
around the world.

october:
L-159 aircraft serving
the company Draken
International started
operation in the United
States of America.

december:
On-time completion of
the delivery of 12 aircraft for the air forces of
the Iraqi army, including the production of a
two-seat L-159 designed for training pilots,
the first aircraft assembled in AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE
a.s. since the end of the
serial production in
2003.

CS300 aircraft's first
flight in the service of
the Latvian airline airBaltic.
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Company profile
AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s.
is historically the
largest producer
of jet trainers
in the world. In total,
it has produced
around 11,000
aircraft, of which
hundreds are still
flying on all continents.

oWn aircraft
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is historically the largest producer of jet trainers in the world. In total,
it has produced around 11,000 aircraft, of which hundreds are still flying on all continents. Airplanes from
Aero boast excellent maneuverability and the ability to withstand all weather conditions. A part of the new
strategy, introduced by the company management in the second half of 2016, is putting a return to producing own aircraft to the forefront at the company priorities.
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. focuses on the development, production and support of its final products
- L-39, L-59, L-159 and L-39NG aircraft - and on the provision of services in the areas of aircraft repair,
modernization, modification and testing.
In 2016, the company was engaged mainly in two programs - L-39NG and L-159. In the L-39NG program,
development work continued on the new aircraft so that in 2017 the production of the first prototypes could
be launched. During the year, testing was carried out on a prototype of the re-engined L-39. The L-159
program focused on the deliveries of the aircraft to both foreign customers. Still, Aero refocuses also on
existing customers re-engagement and service of L-39 aircraft, and in September it organized the first ever
conference of users of those legendary trainers.
Aero continues to provide support for the users of L-39s and L-59s. For the L-39/ L-59 operators, AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. offers an extensive portfolio of services ranging from the extension of service
life and overhauls to upgrades of all the aircraft systems. In the years 2010-2016, Aero renewed airworthiness for 98 aircraft of the L-39/59/159 family.
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L-39NG is a project
of a new, highly
efficient trainer
that will be able
to serve in the
training syllabus
as basic, advanced
and LIFT trainer
thanks to advanced
avionics.

programs and services concerning oWn aircraft
l-39ng program (next generation)
L-39NG is a project concerning a new, highly efficient trainer that will be able to serve in the training syllabus
as a basic, advanced and LIFT trainer thanks to advanced avionics. The L-39NG is based on the aerodynamic concept of the current L-39, but is manufactured using new technologies and contains modern systems.
Aero announced its plan of L-39NG development in July 2014 and shortly after launched the plan implementation. Development work on this program continued throughout 2016 so that in 2017, the production of components and the assembly of the aircraft could begin. The formal start of the assembly of the first prototype
took place at the end of 2016. Aero plans to obtain certification for the aircraft by the end of 2019. In 2016, Aero
launched intensive marketing of the new aircraft and began negotiations with potential customers.
re-engining of existing l-39s
Besides the development of new aircraft, Aero is also working on a project of re-engining the existing L-39s.
In 2015, Aero successfully installed a Williams FJ-44M engine and avionics built around Genesys Aerosystems’ multi-functional displays and a head-up display (HUD) by SPEEL Praha in the existing L-39CA
fuselage airframe. The prototype, called L-39CW, successfully completed its first flight in September 2015.
During 2016, the prototype was tested, and the type certificate for the modified aircraft should be obtained
by the end of 2017. Aero registers several civilian and military users interested in this particular way of
extending the life of their existing L-39.
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Company profile
The light combat
and training aircraft
L-159 combines
many years of Aero’s
experience from
the development
of military jets with
the latest advances
in avionics, engines
and aircraft systems.

light combat and training system l-159
The light combat and training aircraft L-159 combines many years of Aero’s experience from the development of military jets with the latest advances in avionics, engines and aircraft systems.
The single-seat L-159 is designed as a light combat aircraft optimized for a variety of air-to-ground and airto-air tasks and reconnaissance missions. The aircraft is equipped with multi-purpose radar for all weather
conditions and day and night operation, it can also carry a wide range of standard NATO weaponry, including
air-to-air and air-to-ground missiles and laser guided bombs.
The two-seat L-159 is based on the structure of the single-seat version of the L-159 and is primarily designed for advanced and operations training. The configuration of the L-159 can be adapted to the specific
requirements of the customer.
support of l-159 aircraft serving in the armed forces of the czech republic (acr)
• L-159 ALCA single-seat light combat aircraft were put into ACR service in 2000; the two-seat training
version L-159T arrived in 2007.
• The L-159s perform a broad range of tasks from advanced and operations training through close air support up to reconnaissance missions and air defense. They regularly participate in international NATO flying
training events (such as the Tactical Leadership program, NATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter, and Flying Rhino).
• Aero supports the L-159s as a part of a Follow On Support and Services contract (FOSS), which comprises the supply of spare parts and consumables, repairs, technical consulting, and improvements to the
maintenance system.
• In addition, in 2016 Aero conducted the prescribed work after reaching 2,000 flight hours (PP2000) on the
military aircraft L-159T1 under a contract signed at the end of 2015.
• Furthermore, work began on rebuilding three single-seat L-159s into modernized two-seat versions of the
L-159T2 developed by Aero in collaboration with the Czech Air Force.
• Aero also continues in its program of upgrading the L-159's functions – an integral fuel tank, increasing
the fuel storage capacity of the L-159 and so considerably extending its range and endurance.
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AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s.
demonstrated
manufacturing capabilities and capacities
for the production
of the light jet fighter, and so opened
up to other potential
foreign customers
for the L-159 aircraft.

l-159 abroad
• In April 2014, the company signed a contract for the supply of ten single-seat L-159As and two two-seat
L-159T1s to the Iraqi Air Force. The supply includes the aircraft repair and supply of logistic equipment.
• Aero delivered the first L-159s to the Iraqi Air Force in December 2015. The last three aircraft, two single
and one two-seater, the first L-159 made directly for a foreign customer, were delivered by Aero to the
customer at the end of December 2016.
• Another contract for the supply of up to 21 L-159s to the American company Draken International was signed
in July 2014. As in the previous case, repairs of the aircraft and delivery of logistic equipment are part of the supply.
• During 2016, deliveries of aircraft to Draken International successfully continued.
• In connection with the supply of L-159s to the Iraqi Air Force, the production line was reestablished. AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. demonstrated manufacturing capabilities and capacities for the production
of the light jet fighter, and so opened up to other potential foreign customers for the L-159 aircraft.
support for l-39
Aero also provides support for L-39s and L-59s operated by both military and civilian users. Aero provides
its customers with services from supplies of spare parts, servicing, prescribed inspections and repairs, up to
regular overhauls, often related to service-life extension and installation of a device measuring the aircraft
load in operation. Aero service teams are prepared to work on customers’ sites, they have operated for a long
time in Algeria, Bulgaria, Hungary, Nigeria, Slovakia, Tunisia and other countries.
In September 2016, Aero organized a first-time conference of L-39 users. The conference was attended by
representatives of 13 armies around the world, who, in addition to sharing experience with L-39, were interested in the options of training at a time when their existing aircraft reach their end of life.
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Company profile
AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s. is
a 1st and 2nd tier
supplier to leading
world aerospace
manufacturers. Aero
focuses primarily
on the manufacture
and assembly
of complex aircraft
structures with
a high degree of
product finalization,
including systems
integration and
testing.

international cooperation
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a 1st and 2nd tier supplier to leading world aerospace manufacturers.
Aero focuses primarily on the manufacture and assembly of complex aircraft structures with a high degree
of product finalization, including systems integration and testing, supply management, and final inspection.
Aero is involved in all stages of the lifecycle of commercial and military projects, combining the company’s
extensive experience in the aviation industry acquired during more than ninety years of its existence with
implementation of the latest technologies, testing methods, and lean production principles.
Under the new strategy, Aero emphasizes the development and acquisition of a smaller number of large
projects. That means mainly risk-share programs, or programs of smaller size but with strategic benefit
or a high added value for the company. In the second half of 2016, Aero launched an in-depth analysis
of each program in order to identify key programs and to recommend the termination of some of the existing cooperations. At the same time, it continued to seek fresh business opportunities in line with the new
strategy of the company.

A new multi-purpose
mid-size transport
military aircraft
designed
for carrying cargo
and passengers.

cooperation programs
embraer Kc-390
program description
• A new multi-purpose mid-size transport military aircraft designed for carrying cargo and passengers.
It is a direct competitor of the C-130 Hercules manufactured by Lockheed Martin.
• The project was initiated by the Brazilian Air Force.
• 28 aircraft have been ordered by the Brazilian Air Force with a commitment to partially finance their
development.
• Columbia, Chile, Argentina, Portugal, and the Czech Republic have also shown interest in acquiring
the aircraft.
• Aero is a strategic risk-sharing partner of Embraer.
• The aircraft rolled out in October 2014, with its first flight on February 3, 2015; certification of the aircraft
is expected to be completed during 2018, and the aircraft should enter service in the same year.
• In 2016, the KC-390 prototype stopped at Aero as part of its first ever trip outside South America.
Aero delivered several of the packages in 2016, in early 2017 it expects the transition from prototype to
mass production.
aero’s product and role
• Aero is fully responsible for the development, industrialization, certification support and production of
the fixed leading edge of the wing.
• Aero is fully responsible for industrialization and production of all doors, the cargo ramp and section II of
the rear fuselage.
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The contract for
the development
and production
of the leading edge
for the CSeries
aircraft was signed
by Aero in 2009
with the Belgian
company Sonaca.

bombardier cseries
program description
• The Bombardier CSeries is a new single-aisle transport aircraft for short and medium-haul commercial
traffic. Two versions of the aircraft (CS100 and CS300) can carry between 100 and 150 passengers.
• The target for the CSeries is to achieve the lowest operating costs in its class thanks to its advanced
airframe design and new generation engines.
• The contract for the development and production of the leading edge for the CSeries aircraft was signed
by Aero in 2009 with the Belgian company Sonaca. During 2016, a contract was signed with the aircraft
manufacturer, Bombardier, and so Aero now supplies Bombardier Belfast directly.
• Aero is the exclusive supplier of the fixed leading edge of the wing.
• The first flight of the CS100 prototype took place on September 16, 2013. The program schedule was affected by technical problems. The certification of this type was completed at the end of 2015. In July 2016,
the first CS100 started to serve the customer, the Swiss airline Swiss Global Air Lines (SWISS).
• The first flight of the CS300 prototype took place on February 27, 2015, in June 2016 this type of aircraft
received certification and in December it set off on its first commercial flight under the new operator, the
Latvian airline airBaltic.
aero’s product and role
• Fully assembled and equipped fixed leading edge (FLE) of the wing ready for being mounted to the aircraft.
• Aero is fully responsible for design, industrialization, certification and production.
the future of the program
• At the end of 2016, Bombardier registered 360 firm orders for the aircraft, and delivered a total of 14 aircraft, of which 8 were CS100s and 6 CS300s.
• In the second half of the year, measures were introduced to the assembly line, allowing Aero to accelerate deliveries in line with the schedule and customer requirements. In 2016, Aero delivered a total
of 27 pairs of leading edges.
• In future years, Aero expects a significant increase in the volume of supplies.
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Aero produces
fully assembled
and equipped
helicopter airframes
ready for installation
of the dynamic
parts (engines,
gearbox, rotors).

siKorsKy s-76
program description
• The Sikorsky S-76 is a successful twin-engine lower medium category civil helicopter with a maximum
takeoff weight of 6 tons, designed to carry up to 12 passengers.
• Since the production commenced in 1982, Sikorsky has delivered more than 800 helicopters to customers, mainly in the United States, Canada, Europe, and the Far East.
• Aero has been manufacturing the S-76s since 2000 and to date has delivered more than 380 helicopters.
• In 2011, Aero began serial production of the S-76D version, which gradually replaced the previous model,
the S-76C++.
• The first S-76D helicopters were delivered to their operators in December 2013.
aero’s product and role
• Aero produces fully assembled and equipped helicopter airframes ready for installation of dynamic parts
(engines, gearbox, rotors).
• Aero has full responsibility for the production and the supply chain.
• Aero produces approximately 8,000 different types of parts and components, including tubing and wiring
harnesses.
• Aero installs avionic, hydraulic, electrical, and fuel systems and provides their testing.
• Aero is responsible for after-sales support.
the future of the program
• In the near future, Aero expects to deliver several S-76D helicopters per year.
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Aero supplies
fully equipped
cockpits for
the UH-60M
and S-70i
helicopters.

siKorsKy uh-60m and s-70i blacK hawK
program description
• Helicopters of the Sikorsky S-70/ UH-60 series are currently the most common type of military transport
helicopter.
• The UH-60M is the latest version used by the U.S. armed forces and by a number of other countries
through the US program Foreign Military Sales; the S-70i is the export version.
• The contract between Aero and Sikorsky for the supply of UH-60M cockpits was concluded in 2010;
Aero is one of two suppliers of the cockpits. The first cockpit was delivered in June 2011. In 2016 Aero
delivered 41 cockpits.
• Aero also supplies cockpits to the subsidiary company Sikorsky PZL Mielec in Poland and supplies
cockpits for the international version of the Black Hawk, the S-70i.
• The program has a stable, long-term outlook.
• Aero submitted an offer to SAC for another five-year period 2018–2023. Aero expects that contract amendment to be concluded in 2017.
aero’s product and role
• Aero supplies fully equipped cockpits for the UH-60M and S-70i helicopters.
• Aero manufactures parts and assembles the cockpits, including installation of electrical harnesses and
flight safety parts.
the future of the program
• The UH-60M program anticipates producing at least 500 UH-60M helicopters over the next ten years for
the needs of the of U.S. armed forces. That number excludes exports, where Aero expects deliveries of at
least 200 helicopters in the same time horizon.
• The continuation of the successful program was confirmed in 2016 by signing a contract amendment
which extends the contract with the customer.
• Aero’s goal is to maintain a 50% share in the total supplies.
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Aero is the original
manufacturer
of landing gear
for small aircraft
and the supplier
of components
for landing gear
of large transport
aircraft.

other programs
During 2016 it was decided to terminate some aero-structures programs that do not fit in with the new corporate strategy. This decision, however, did not reflect in 2016, when the programs continued in the normal mode.
landing gear production
• Aero is the original manufacturer of landing gear for small aircraft and the supplier of components for
landing gear of large transport aircraft.
• Aero designs and manufactures landing gear for the Czech company Aircraft Industries - for their
19-seat twin-engine turbo-prop transport aircraft, L-410 Turbolet.
• Since 2010, Aero has delivered landing-gear sub-assemblies to Messier-Bugatti-Dowty for their Airbus
A320s and A321s, single-aisle medium-range transport aircraft, currently the best-selling aircraft in the
world. In 2014, the contract was extended to cover the A320/A321 NEO aircraft.
• Aero produces landing gear for all of its own training and combat aircraft.
alenia c-27J spartan
• The Alenia C-27J is a military tactical transport aircraft with a maximum payload of 11.5 tons. The primary
users of the aircraft are air forces of the United States, Italy, Greece and Australia as well as countries
of Central and Eastern Europe, Latin America and Africa.
• Since 2007, Aero has been the sole supplier of the center wing box, which is a critical structural
and system unit of the whole aircraft. The center wing box assembly includes integral tanks, pylons for
engine installation and mechanical systems of the wing, fuel and hydraulic lines, and electrical harnesses. All systems are tested by Aero.
• Aero delivered 3 center wing box units in 2016.
• Aero expects to deliver approximately 5 center wing boxes annually in the upcoming years.
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In 2016, Aero
delivered 15 sets
of the panels
to the Italian
company LeonardoFinmeccanica.

alenia - section 14a fuselage panels for the a321
• In 2012, Aero signed a contract to supply fuselage panels of section 14A for the Airbus A321.
• The A321 is a stretched version of the standard A320 and it is the largest of the A320 family supplied by
Airbus to a countless number of airlines.
• In 2016, Aero delivered 15 sets of the panels to the Italian company Leonardo-Finmeccanica.

embraer 170/190
• With more than 1,100 aircraft produced, the E-Jets family is one of the most commercially successful
series, operating primarily on regional lines.
• Aero has been a partner of Latecoere since 2007 and is the single source supplier of hinges and internal
structures of all doors for the Embraer 170/190.
• In 2014 Aero became involved in the production of new generation of the E-Jets family, the E2. Aero sent
the first delivery for the E2 in June 2015, the first flight of the E2 aircraft is scheduled for 2016. The three
versions of the second generation E-Jets should become operational in 2018-2020.

26

Since 2005, Aero
has delivered small
assemblies and
structural parts
for Airbus A320s
and A330s to the
German company
Premium Aerotec.

airbus a320, a330
• Aero is a partner of ST Aerospace in the development and production of shell structures for the passenger-to-freight conversion (P2F) for Airbus A320s and A321s.
• Aero supplies the company MT Aerospace with small assemblies and composite parts for Airbus A350s
and Airbus A400Ms.
• Since 2005, Aero has delivered small assemblies and structural parts for Airbus A320s and A330s to the
German company Premium Aerotec.
• In 2013, Aero signed a contract with Stelia Aerospace, a subsidiary of the Airbus Group, for E-Bay Doors
deliveries for the A320 family.

tecnam p2012
• Since 2014, Aero has been engaged in the development of the Tecnam P2012 Traveler, a high-wing multipurpose aircraft for 9 to 11 passengers, for the Italian company Costruzioni Aeronautiche Tecnam.
• Aero was responsible for the development, prototyping, testing and certification of the nose and main
landing gear.
• The development of the aircraft began in 2011; the first flight took place in July 2016.
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16

Aero has been producing helicopters for Sikorsky for 16 years.
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Company profile
significant events after the balance-sheet date
march:
By delivering the cargo ramp at the
specified time and quality, AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. completed the development phase of
the KC-390 project, and thereby
mass production could start in the
key aero-structures program.
With effect from March 20, 2017, the
sole shareholder decided to remove
Ing. Petr Brychta and Ing. Dominika
Kalinová from their positions as
members of the Board. With effect
from March 21, 2017, based on a decision of the sole shareholder,
Giuseppe Giordo was elected
as member of the Board.
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april:
Development of the wing airframe
structure of the L-39NG was
completed.
With effect from April 30, 2017, the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board,
Zdeněk Sýkora, was removed from
office, and with effect from May 1,
2017, Dominika Kalinová was
appointed Chairwoman of the
Supervisory Board.

upcoming events
may:
Aero and the Armed Forces of the
Czech Republic signed an agreement on upgrading the L-159
aircraft. This involves improving the
aircraft cockpits, tailor-made directly
for the Czech Air Force.

June:
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
and Sikorsky extended their cooperation on the Black Hawk project.
Aero will supply cockpits for the legendary helicopters until at least
2023.

July:
Development of the fuselage airframe design and manufacture
of hundreds of the first parts for the
L-39NG prototypes was completed.

Starting the assembly of the
fuselage and wings of the L-39NG
aircraft prototype.
Completing the certification for
the re-engining of L-39s with new
Williams engines.
Winning the first customers for
replacing engines in L-39s and
L-39NGs and new customers for the
L-159 aircraft.
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The Czech Army operates 24 L-159s.
Aero is preparing to upgrade the cockpits of these aircraft.
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Financial results of the company
For the financial
year 2016,
the company
AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s.
reported profit
totaling
CZK 39.2 million
after tax.

For the financial year 2016, the company AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. reported profit totaling CZK 39.2
million after tax. The result was significantly influenced by the decision of the new management to terminate some programs and by the related accounting transactions reducing the related inventory and assets.
The EBITDA operating profit before creating extraordinary allowances related to the closure of certain
programs reached CZK 876 million, which is a better result by 107% year-on-year. After including extraordinary allowances, the EBITDA operating profit amounted in 2016 to CZK 462.9 million. The balance sheet
total as on December 31, 2016 amounted to CZK 6,021.5 million, equity covered 24.6% of assets and amounted to CZK 1,480.2 million.

sales
In 2016, the company generated sales at CZK 5,231 million. The most important source of revenues were the
sales of own products and services, for which the company received CZK 4,616 million. Revenues from sales
of goods reached CZK 484 million. For the sale of assets and material the company received CZK 131 million. For deliveries to foreign customers, the company received CZK 4,691.9 million, which represents 89.7%
of total sales.
After the transition to a functional organization structure, the proportion of the cooperation programs in total
sales for 2016 was 44.5%, i.e. CZK 2,284.0 million. A significant proportion in the sales is held by the supply
of S-76D helicopters and Black Hawk assemblies. The section of own aircraft generated sales at the amount
of CZK 2,797.3 million and its share in the sales of the company was 54.5%. Compared to last year, the shares of the sections in total sales turned in favor of the development, production and support of own aircraft.
The sales from that section consisted mainly of the supply of
L-159s and the related logistics to Iraq.
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the result
For the year 2016, the company generated profit before tax at CZK 190.1 million. The tax liability for 2016
amounted to CZK 150.9 million. The result before tax was made up of CZK 305.7 million of operating profit
and of loss from financial activities at CZK -115.6 million.
The operating profit grew year-on-year by CZK 15.2 mil. to CZK 305.7 mil. From the financing of the company, a loss was incurred at the amount of CZK 115.6 million, which was caused mainly by the weakening
of the Czech crown against the US dollar. The loss sustained from currency conversions was CZK 18.3 million. The implementation and revaluation of financial derivatives caused a loss at the amount of CZK 6.3
million. Aero spent CZK 56,6 million on interest payable. The loans provided and interest bearing deposits
generated interest at CZK 1.8 mil. The charges related to financing amounted to CZK 36.2 million.

asset structure
As on December 31, 2016, the company owned assets amounting to CZK 6,021.5 million. Fixed assets
recorded as on December 31, 2016 amounted to CZK 1,573.9 million. Assets in progress include mainly the
assets related to the development of parts of the KC-390 aircraft, the L-39NG project, and the introduction
of new production programs.
The current assets of Aero represented CZK 3,386.6 million. Inventory accounted for 65.6% of current
assets, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.8%. The inventory reduction is largely influenced by
recognizing loss allowances for programs that are planned to be terminated in the following year.
Accruals representing the delivered supplies to the Iraqi customer accounted for 17.6% of the total assets
at the turn of the year.
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Financial results of the company
In 2016, the company
published a new
corporate strategy:
it began to focus
on the development
and production
of its own military
aircraft and
on continuing in its
major cooperation
programs.

financial standing
As on December 31, 2016, the company financed 24.6% of its assets from own resources. Liabilities amounting
to CZK 4,410.7 million were made up of provisions amounting to CZK 443.7 million, bank loans and loans from
leasing companies amounting to CZK 2,062 million, payables to related parties at the amount of CZK 124.6 million,
trade payables of CZK 495 mil., advances received at CZK 721 million and other liabilities at CZK 564.4 million.
In comparison with the previous year, liabilities decreased by CZK 142.6 million, the reason for the decline in
liabilities was the reduction of debt owed to banks and leasing companies by CZK 121.8 million and a decrease
in advances from customers intended to finance production and inventory in the relevant production programs.
In passive accruals, the company showed items amounting to CZK 130.6 million.

investments, development programs, research and development
In 2016, the company published a new corporate strategy: it began to focus on the development and
production of its own military aircraft and on continuing in its major cooperation programs. Investments
were made in the second phase of development of the jet trainer L-39NG and Aero continued to invest in the
projects of the KC-390 and the introduction of composite parts manufacturing.
In 2016, it invested in IT (CZK 14 mil.) and approved the implementation of the PLM system, which will improve the management particularly of design data (worth CZK 15 mil.). To ensure the competitiveness of
Aero, stable investments are made in equipment and investment tools. In 2016, they amounted to CZK 48
mil., especially in the modernization of the ASEA press, purchase of equipment for mechanical hardening
of surfaces, purchase of furnaces for the production of cockpit canopies, thermal printers, etc.
In the reference year, considerable attention was paid to investment in buildings, creating a befitting space
for meetings with clients, such as the reconstruction of the cinema hall and in improving the working
environment of staff, for example refurbishing the dining hall. Last but not least, work began on the
reconstruction of the main administration building. As part of the reconstruction of buildings, also extension
of assemblies (H133 reconstruction), refurbishing the smaller hall in connection with the new project
L-39NG, and others were performed.
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To finance the further development of the jet trainer L-39NG, Aero applied for support from EU funds and
for financial support from the government in the past year 2015-2016.
Under the Operational Program Enterprise and Innovation for Competitiveness (OP EIC) managed by the
Ministry of Industry and Trade, an application was submitted under the sub-program Applications for development work on the on-board systems of the L-39NG aircraft. The grant at the amount of CZK 99.9 million
was approved in April 2017. At the same time, in the same OP EIC, an application was submitted under the
sub-program Potential for Building a Center for Industrial Development and Innovation of Aero for the
construction of the new L-39NG aircraft. The company received the decision on the award of the grant at the
amount of CZK 74.5 mil. in November 2016. This investment grant will be spent on expanding the development and research center of the company.
Aero submitted its project on developing the shell for the new generation aircraft for the second public tender
under the EPSILON program supporting applied research and experimental development, announced by the
Technology Agency of the Czech Republic. At the beginning of 2017, Aero managed to obtain financial support
and the total amount of the grant awarded was CZK 49.3 mil. The co-beneficiary of Aero in the Epsilon project
is the Czech Aerospace Research Center (VZLU) that will be involved in static testing of the new aircraft shell.
Under the Competence Centers program published by the Technology Agency of the Czech Republic, Aero
received a grant for the project "Research Center for Advanced Aircraft Structures," which is implemented in
close collaboration with a team led by AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., whose members are VZLU, the Czech
Technical University in Prague - Department of Aerospace Engineering, Department of Mechanics, Biomechanics and Mechatronics, the Brno University of Technology - the Aerospace Department, and the company
Honeywell a.s. This project is developing the composite ducting for the L-39NG aircraft. It is a demonstrator
of the primary composite structure of the aircraft falling within the CS-23 category, which is subject to complex demands in terms of durability, reliability and economy. In 2015-16 this project absorbed the grant at CZK
10 mil., and the committed grant for the remaining period 2017-2019 amounts to CZK 16.3 mil.
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In 2017, the company
plans to continue
investing in human
resources, not only
in terms of wages,
but especially
in development
and employee
benefits.

human resources
In 2016, in the field of human resources management, the company focused on optimizing the capacity
requirements of business and on reorganization associated with the new company management. The company has also launched several activities aimed at the development and retention of its employees. The
average number of registered employees at Aero in 2016 was 1,818 (1,909 including agency employees) and
the total number of employees as on December 31, 2016 reached 1,869 (2,020 including agency employees).
Over 314 new employees were hired in that period for qualified labor and technical positions designated
for the preparation and implementation of both existing and new production programs. The average gross
salary was CZK 38,004. Aero spent CZK 10.1 million in total on employee training (including labor costs
reimbursed from grant programs). Development costs per one employee in 2016 reached CZK 5,542. In 2017,
the company plans to continue investing in human resources, not only in terms of wages, but specifically
in development and employee benefits.

In 2016, Aero
produced
1,750 tons of waste,
including 653 tons
of hazardous waste.

environment
In 2016, AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE discharged 6.21 tons of emissions into the atmosphere (of that
5.245 tons of volatile organic compounds, 0.586 tons of nitrogen oxides, 0.336 tons of solid particles and
0.043 tons of other substances). The paint shop and related operations were the largest source of emissions. Measurements of all sources showed that emission limits were met in 2016. No air pollution fee was
imposed for 2016. In 2016, Aero produced 1,750 tons of waste, including 653 tons of hazardous waste.
Aero drew 104.1 thousand m3 of groundwater in 2016 (of that 95.9 thousand m3 for industrial technology).
The fees for groundwater abstraction amounted to CZK 304 thousand. Fees charged for waste water discharge amounted to CZK 15 thousand, including CZK 15 thousand for the discharged pollution.

the airport
At the end of 2015 and beginning of 2016, the activity associated with the operation of the airport was transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. In this context, changes were made to the Articles of Association,
consisting of the expansion of the scope of business (activity) in connection with the operation of the airport
and the related services. The main reason was to enable the company Airport Vodochody a.s. to focus
solely on activities related to the plan to build an international terminal. On March 9, 2016, Aero obtained
permission to provide air navigation services and so fully took over the operation of the PRAGUE/ Vodochody
airport.
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2020
A total of 2,020 people worked for Aero in the 2016.
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Management system of the company
giuseppe
giordo

organiZational structure

board of directors as on december 31, 2016
Dominika Kalinová, Petr Brychta
Members

President & CEO

massimo
ghione
Chief Business
Officer

guido
mule
Secretary
General

tomáš
vlčeK
HR
Director

damiano
cotula
Strategy, PR
& Chief of Staff

michal
flídr
CFO,
VP Finance

david
pacola
Airport & Security
Director

marco
venanZetti
EVP L-39NG
PGM

Jan
štechr
Engineering &
Defense Operations

supervisory board as on december 31, 2016
Zdeněk Sýkora
Chairman
Jan Borýsek, Jan Kříž
Members

hagen
helm
Chief Operating
Officer

top management as on december 31, 2016
Giuseppe Giordo
Chief Executive Officer & President
Guido Mule'
Secretary General
Tomáš Vlček
Director of Human Resources
Damiano Cotula
Strategy, PR & Chief of Staff
Michal Flídr
Chief Finance Officer, VP Finance
David Pacola
Airport & Security Director
Marco Venanzetti
EVP L-39NG Program
Massimo Ghione
Chief Business Officer
Jan Štechr
Engineering & Defense Operations
Hagen Helm
Chief Operations Officer
Jan Štechr
Chief Program Officer Military
Monika Kowalczyková
Chief Program Officer Civil
Aero has no organizational unit abroad.

Jan
štechr
Chief Program
Officer Defense
moniKa
KoWalcyKová
Chief Program
Officer Civil
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History
From the very
beginning, Aero
focused on development and production
of aircraft, aircraft
parts and aircraft
repairs. As early
as 1919, Aero
launched its first
in-house produced
aircraft - the Aero A-1.

the beginnings
Aero was established on Tuesday, February 25, 1919, with its registered office in the Old Town of Prague
and production facilities in Prague-Bubenec. Aero celebrated its 97th anniversary in 2016, ranking it among
the world’s oldest manufacturers of aviation technology. From the very beginning, Aero focused on development and production of aircraft, aircraft parts and aircraft repairs. As early as 1919, Aero launched its first
in-house produced aircraft - the Aero A-1. The Czechoslovak Ministry of Defense ordered mass production
of the aircraft designed for military pilot training, so typical for Aero.
expansion
More powerful trainer types followed, and after production had been moved to new facilities in the Prague district of Vysočany (1923), the foundation was laid for a new family of reconnaissance, bomber and training biplanes of the Aero A-11 and A-12 types. Czechoslovak military pilots soon became famous for breaking records and
winning races in Aero aircraft. Aero, at that time a private enterprise owned by Dr. Vladimír Kabeš, became the
main contractor for the Ministry of Defense and the Ministry of Public Works (civil aviation). The first foreign
customers soon followed, starting with Finland. Between the two world wars, Aero achieved a number of Czechoslovak firsts: it built a prototype of the first indigenous fighter airplane, designed the first dedicated cabin
transport aircraft, the first twin-engine aircraft, the first seaplane with indigenously designed floats, introduced
a braced high-wing monoplane and also pioneered a practical design of a wooden cantilever wing structure.
war production
The enhanced capabilities of the company were fully utilized and later developed during the German occupation, when Aero produced stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures with full jigging for reconnaissance
and training missions (Focke-Wulf Fw 189 and Siebel Si 204). Immediately after the war ended, the nationalized Aero continued in the production and repairs of aircraft. Modified German aircraft types were manufactured for the Czechoslovak Air Force as well as civil aviation. Shortly after the war, a new groundbreaking
indigenous type was introduced – the high-performance, twin-engine, all-metal, four-seat Aero 45.
the Jet era
In 1953, new facilities designed entirely for jet aircraft production were built in Vodochody and they were put
into operation in the same year. The production, in which several Czechoslovak aerospace plants were involved, focused on a large-scale series license production of the Soviet MiG-15 aircraft and its derivatives. The
supersonic MiG-19 and MiG-21 aircraft were manufactured by Aero throughout the 1960s and 1970s, paving
the way in production capabilities to indigenous jet trainer programs - the L-29 Delfin and the L-39 Albatros.
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In 2007, the private
equity group Penta
became a sole
shareholder
of Aero and started
the restructuring
process in the
company.

indigenous Jet trainers
In the second half of the 1950s, the need for jet trainers grew. Concentrated efforts in developing an optimized airframe and indigenous jet engine resulted in the maiden flight of the L-29 in 1959. The definitive step
on Aero’s path to mass production of jet trainers was made in the summer of 1961 near Moscow: the L-29
Delfin won the comparative testing of three different prototypes and was declared the most suitable trainer
in all of the Eastern Bloc countries. Production and deliveries continued smoothly for the following ten years,
during which time the second generation of more powerful and much more efficient L-39s was developed.
Production of the L-39 occupied Aero’s workshops and assembly halls during the 1970s and 1980s.
The L-39 Albatros family expanded considerably in the course of time, forming a perfect basis for further
development. The advent of the 1990s saw the incorporation of western avionics and standards as well as
the use of more powerful American engines and global equipment, and with it the start of a new chapter in the
life of the company. The L-159 Combat & Training System included the L-159 advanced training and light combat aircraft, integrated logistic support, mission planning and debriefing and a ground-based training system.
modern history
In the new millennium, Aero set off in a new direction and entered into its first cooperation program - the
entire S-76 helicopter ready for installation of dynamic parts for the American company Sikorsky Aircraft
Corporation. In 2007, the Penta private equity group became the sole shareholder of Aero and started the
restructuring process in the company. The doors to the global market opened for Aero and it began acquiring further co-operation programs, including the first risk-sharing programs. The company has thus become a top-class partner of world leading aerospace manufacturers. The stabilization of the company
allowed it to return to the tradition of development and production of jet trainers – in 2014, Aero announced
the launch of the L-39NG project, a new generation of the legendary aircraft.
In 2014, after long years of negotiations, Aero signed the first contracts with international customers
for the L-159 - the private US company Draken International and the Iraqi army. In connection with the supply
of L-159s to the Iraqi Air Force, the production line was reestablished. AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
demonstrated manufacturing capabilities and capacities for the production of the light jet fighter, and so
opened up to other potential foreign customers for the L-159 aircraft.
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Aero through the years
 1919

aero – továrna létadel (Aero – aircraft
factory) founded in Prague
a-1, first military
aircraft designed and built by Aero

 1921

a-10, first civilian airliner

 1923

a-11, family of military
biplanes (bomber
and reconnaissance aircraft)

 1932

a-100, family of military
biplanes (bomber
and reconnaissance aircraft)

 1937

mb-200, all-metal bomber
aircraft manufactured under
French license (Marcel Bloch)

 1938

a-304, twin-engine low-wing
military aircraft
a-300, twin-engine low-wing bomber aircraft

 1925

De Havilland dh-50, passenger
aircraft built under British license

 1929

a-34 “Blackbird”,
first in the line of light sports
and training biplanes
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 1939

c4/c-104 (Bucker Bu-131
Jungmann) training
and aerobatic biplane

 1943

c-3 (Siebel Si-204D),
twin-engine military aircraft

 1947

ae-45, twin-engine
civil aircraft

 1953

Aero moved from Prague
to a new plant in vodochody

 1954

Maiden flight of the mig-15, jet fighter
aircraft produced under Soviet
license (3,405 aircraft supplied
from 1954 to 1962)

 1958

Maiden flight of the mig-19 Farmer,
supersonic fighter aircraft produced
under Soviet license (103 aircraft
supplied from 1958 to 1962)

 1959

 1962

Maiden flight of the mig-21 Fishbed
supersonic fighter aircraft
produced under Soviet license
(194 aircraft supplied from 1962 to 1972)

 1968

Maiden flight of the in-house designed
and constructed jet trainer
l-39 albatros (more than 2,900
aircraft supplied from 1971 to 1999)

 1986

Maiden flight of the in-house designed
and constructed jet trainer l-39ms
– exported as L-59 Super Albatros
(60 aircraft supplied from 1992 to 1996)

 1997

Maiden flight of the single-seat light combat aircraft l-159 alca
(72 aircraft ordered by the Czech Air Force)
Starting a joint-enter-prise with Taiwanese AIDC to develop
and produce ae270 civil aircraft

Maiden flight of the l-29 delfín,
the first jet trainer designed
in Czechoslo-vakia (3,500 aircraft
supplied from 1963 to 1974)
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Aero through the years
 2000

First l-159 supplied to the Czech Air Force

Start of production of passenger door polished skins
for the boeing 757
Maiden flight of the first ae270 prototype

 2005

ae270 aircraft obtained an EASA Type Certificate
Aero signed a long-term agreement
regarding post-warranty support
of the l-159 squadron

Start of production of the s-76 helicopter
for the Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation

 2001

Start of production of the f-18 Super Hornet gun bay door
for Boeing St. Louis
Start of production of sets of parts and subassemblies
of the boeing 767 for BAE SYSTEMS
(currently Spirit AeroSystems)

 2002

Maiden flight of the l-159b two-seat
advanced training aircraft

 2004

Supply of the l-159 aircraft for the
Czech Air Force completed
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 2006

ae270 aircraft obtained an FAA Type Certificate

 2009

 2013

 2010

 2014

First international risk-sharing project agreement signed for
the bombardier c-series and its fixed leading edge development,
certification support and production

Black Hawk uh-60m cockpit
production agreement
signed with Sikorsky
l-410ng Landing gear

 2007

Aero acquired by Penta
private equity group
l-159t1 advanced trainers supplied to the Czech Air Force.

Aero bought Rotortech Composites Ltd.
Start of production of the centrer wing box of the c-27J spartan
for Alenia Aeronautica

 2008

Start of production of door subassemblies of the embraer 170/190
for Latecoere
Aero signed a contract
with SAAB to produce
Jas-39 gripen pylons

 2011

Aero in partnership with Embraer developed, designed and produced the Kc-390 aircraft. Aero is responsible for the design
and production of wing leading edge, technological development
and production of all seven doors, ramp and rear fuselage
Aero extended the Messier-Bugatti-Dowty contract by adding
production of airbus a320 Landing gear

 2012

PZL Mielec chose Aero
to supply the international
version of Black Hawk
s-70i helicopter cockpits

Alenia Aermacchi
chose Aero to supply
airbus a321 14A section
fuselage panels

Start of development of the l-39ng, the new generation
of the legendary L-39 aircraft
tecnam p2012 Landing gear

 2015

First flight of a re-engined l-39
- demonstrator of the first
stage of the L-39NG project

 2016

Prototype of the new military transport aircraft
KC-390 visited AERO Vodochody after being displayed
at Farnborough International Airshow.
The US partner of Aero, Draken International has started
the flight operations of the fleet of L-159E aircraft.
Restoring of L-159 assembly line.
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314

314 new employees were hired for qualified laborer
and technical positions in 2015.
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Opinion of the supervisory board
In accordance with the provisions of Section 447 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., Commercial Companies and Cooperatives (Commercial Companies Act), the Supervisory Board reviewed the regular financial statements of the company
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. for the accounting period from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016.
After consulting the regular financial statements and acquainting themselves with the auditor's opinion, the
Supervisory Board recommended at its meeting on June 29, 2017 that the submitted regular financial statements
for the accounting period from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 be approved by the regular General Meeting
of the Company.
The Supervisory Board also recommended that the General Meeting approve the proposal of the Board of Directors
to divide the profit for the accounting period January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 as follows:
The profit (after tax) at the amount of CZK 39,153,245.12 will be divided as follows:
Transfer of the profit at the amount of CZK 39,153,245.12 from the account 431 - Profit or loss in approval procedure to account 428 - Retained earnings from past years.

In Odolena Voda, on June 29, 2017

Ing. Dominika Kalinová
Chairwoman
of the Supervisory Board
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Ing. Jan Kříž
Member
of the Supervisory Board

Jan Borýsek
Member
of the Supervisory Board
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In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based on the procedures we have performed on the other
information obtained, we have not identified any material misstatement.
responsibilities of the company’s board of directors and supervisory board for the financial statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholder of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.:
opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (the Company) prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic, which comprise the balance sheet as on December 31, 2016,
and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details of the
Company, see Note 1 to the financial statements. In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company as on December 31, 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.
basis for the opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and Auditing Standards of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech
Republic, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended by the related application clauses. Our responsibilities under this law and regulation are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
other information
In compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon. The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
In addition, we assess whether the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable law
or regulation, in particular, whether the other information complies with law or regulation in terms of formal requirements and
procedure for preparing the other information in the context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence judgments made on the basis of the other information.
Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that:
• The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements is, in all material respects,
consistent with the financial statements; and
• The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation.
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auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with above regulations will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401

Radek Pav, Auditor
License No. 2042

September 8, 2017
Prague, Czech Republic
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Financial statement
gross

current
year
allowances

net

prior year
2015
net

a.

total assets
stocK subscription receivable

9 482 813
0

-3 461 321

6 021 492
0

6 081 881

b.

fiXed assets

4 140 247

-2 566 365

1 573 882

1 678 498

b. i.
B. I. 1.
2.

intangible fixed assets
Research and development
Valuable rights
Software
Other valuable rights
Goodwill
Other intangible fixed assets
Advances granted for intangible fixed assets
and intangible fixed assets in progress
Advances granted for intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets in progress
tangible fixed assets
Land and structures
Land
Structures
Movable assets and sets of movable assets
Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property
Other tangible fixed assets
Perennial crops
Livestock
Miscellaneous tangible fixed assets
Advances granted for tangible fixed assets
and tangible fixed assets in progress
Advances granted for tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets in progress
long-term investments
Interests – controlled or controlling entity
Loans and borrowings – controlled or controlling entity
Interests – significant influence
Loans and borrowings to associates
Other long-term securities and interests
Loans and borrowings - other
Loans and borrowings - other
Miscellaneous long-term investments
Advances granted for long-term investments

623 949
0
449 953
254 985
194 968
-13 915
1 166

-354 361
0
-347 200
-236 131
-111 069
2 783
-773

269 588
0
102 753
18 854
83 899
-11 132
393

206 805
0
56 191
17 077
39 114
0
580

186 745

-9 171

177 574

150 034

0
186 745
3 515 221
1 110 319
18 206
1 092 113
2 053 759
0
14 265
0
0
14 265

0
-9 171
-2 212 004
-593 968
0
-593 968
-1 568 098
0
-6 274
0
0
-6 274

0
177 574
1 303 217
516 351
18 206
498 145
485 661
0
7 991
0
0
7 991

0
150 034
1 470 616
523 669
18 206
505 463
629 426
0
8 735
0
0
8 735

336 878

-43 664

293 214

308 786

3 709
333 169
1 077
1 077
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
-43 664
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3 709
289 505
1 077
1 077
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

5 759
303 027
1 102
1 077
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

3.
4.

1.
2.

5.

b. ii.
B. II. 1.
2.
3.
4.

1.
2.
1.
2.

1.
2.
3.

5.

b. iii.
B. III. 1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
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1.
2.

1.
2.

gross

current
year
allowances

net

prior year
2015
net

c.

current assets

4 281 561

-894 956

3 386 605

3 973 098

c. i.
C. I. 1.
2.
3.

inventories
Materials
Work in progress and semi-finished production
Finished products and goods
Finished products
Goods
Livestock
Advances granted for inventories
receivables
long-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables – controlled or controlling entity
Receivables – significant influence
Deferred tax asset
Other receivables
Receivables from partners
Long-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Miscellaneous receivables
short-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables – controlled or controlling entity
Receivables – significant influence
Other receivables
Receivables from partners
Social security and health insurance
Due from government - tax receivables
Short-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Miscellaneous receivables
short-term financial assets
Interests - controlled or controlling entity
Other short-term financial assets
cash
Cash in hand
Cash at bank
prepaid expenses and accrued income
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Accrued income

3 086 531
1 592 068
1 155 848
102 045
0
102 045
0
236 570
1 002 417
28 537
0
28 537
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
973 880
916 667
11 559
0
45 654
0
0
25 678
5 302
4 474
10 200
0
0
0
192 613
6 145
186 468
1 061 005
151 175
66 781
843 049

-864 395
-682 910
-178 212
-70
0
-70
0
-3 203
-30 561
0
0
0
0

2 222 136
909 158
977 636
101 975
0
101 975
0
233 367
971 856
28 537
0
28 537
0
0
0
0

2 796 661
1 094 117
1 185 893
5 284
0
5 284
0
511 367
677 401
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
677 401
593 423
35 119
0
48 859
0
0
30 115
12 630
1 720
4 394
0
0
0
499 036
7 760
491 276
430 285
187 513
64 726
178 046

1.
2.

4.
5.

c. ii.
c. ii.1.

c. ii.2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
5.1.
5.2.
5.3.
5.4.

1.
2.
3.
4.
4.1.
4.2.
4.3.
4.4.
4.5.
4.6.

c. iii.
1.
2.
c. iv.
1.
2.
d.
D.
1.
2.
3.

0
0
0
-30 561
-25 248
0
0
-5 313
0
0
0
0
0
-5 313
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
943 319
891 419
11 559
0
40 341
0
0
25 678
5 302
4 474
4 887
0
0
0
192 613
6 145
186 468
1 061 005
151 175
66 781
843 049
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Financial statement
a.
a. i.
A. I. 1.
2.
3.
a. ii.
A. II. 1.
2.

a. iii.
A. III. 1.
2.
a. iv.
IV. 1.
2.
3.
a. v.
a. vi.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

current
year

prior year
2015

total eQuity & liabilities
eQuity

6 021 492
1 480 189

6 081 881
1 482 777

basic capital
Registered capital
Own ownership interests (-)
Changes in basic capital
share premium and revaluation reserve
Share premium
Capital funds
Other capital funds
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities (+/-)
Gain or loss on revaluation upon corporate transformation (+/-)
Differences arising on corporate transformation (+/-)
Differences arising between balance sheet date and transformation date (+/-)
reserves from profit
Other reserves
Statutory and other reserves
profit (loss) brought forward (+/-)
Retained earnings
Accumulated loss (-)
Other profit (loss) brought forward (+/-)
profit (loss) for the year (+/-)
approved decision on advances for profit distribution (-)

1 002 000
1 002 000
0
0
-39 582
0
-39 582
0
-41 013
0
1 431
0
2 021
0
2 021
476 597
476 597
0
0
39 153
0

1 002 000
1 002 000
0
0
1 484
0
1 484
0
53
0
1 431
0
2 696
0
2 696
438 784
438 784
0
0
37 813
0

b. + c.
b.
B.

c.
C. I.

1.
2.
3.
4.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

c. ii.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

d.
D.
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1.
2.

1.
2.

1.
2.
3.
1.
2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

current
year

prior year
2015

provisions and liabilities

4 410 723

4 553 308

provisions
Provision for pensions and similar obligations
Provision for corporate income tax
Provisions recognized under special legislation
Other provisions
liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Bonds payable
Convertible bonds
Other bonds
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Long-term advances received
Trade payables
Long-term notes payable
Liabilities – controlled or controlling entity
Liabilities – significant influence
Deferred tax liability
Other liabilities
Liabilities to partners
Unbilled deliveries
Miscellaneous liabilities
current liabilities
Bonds payable
Convertible bonds
Other bonds
Amounts owed to credit institutions
Short-term advances received
Trade payables
Short-term notes payable
Liabilities – controlled or controlling entity
Liabilities – significant influence
Other liabilities
Liabilities to partners
Short-term borrowings
Liabilities to employees
Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance
Due to government – taxes and subsidies
Unbilled deliveries
Miscellaneous liabilities
accruals and deferred income
Accruals
Deferred income

443 725
0
0
0
443 725
3 966 998
969 772
0
0
0
803 618
0
0
0
124 634
0
0
41 520
0
0
41 520
2 997 226
0
0
0
1 194 100
720 963
495 007
0
0
0
587 156
0
0
51 047
29 129
156 117
281 867
68 996
130 580
3 633
126 947

334 663
0
0
0
334 663
4 218 645
879 906
0
0
0
815 599
0
0
0
0
0
0
64 307
0
0
64 307
3 338 739
0
0
0
1 325 371
1 080 857
403 948
0
136 532
0
392 031
0
0
43 645
26 963
33 089
263 622
24 712
45 796
1 648
44 148
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Financial statement
current
year

prior year
2015

I.
II.

Revenue from sale of finished products and services
Revenue from sale of goods

4 616 043
483 536

3 240 242
730 757

a.

production-related consumption
Cost of goods sold
Consumption of material and energy
Services
change in inventory produced internally (+/-)
own work capitalized (-)
personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Social security and health insurance costs and other costs
Social security and health insurance costs
Other costs
value adjustments in respect of operating activities
Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets
Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets - permanent
Value adjustments in respect of intangible and tangible fixed assets - temporary
Value adjustments in respect of inventory
Value adjustments in respect of receivables
other operating income
Income from sale of fixed assets
Income from sale of materials
Miscellaneous operating income
other operating expenses
Net book value of fixed assets sold
Net book value of materials sold
Taxes and charges relating to operations
Provisions relating to operations and prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Miscellaneous operating expenses

2 909 587
323 355
1 343 489
1 242 743
-99 607
151 294
1 139 042
848 685
290 357
274 352
16 005
702 131
343 111
157 181
185 930
359 492
-472
708 949
21 008
110 381
577 560
803 709
19 552
48 404
4 745
107 007
624 001

2 607 815
498 300
1 288 397
821 118
122 977
103 268
1 019 591
756 527
263 064
246 582
16 482
151 392
111 889
122 506
-10 617
46 959
-7 456
1 339 612
446 583
22 397
870 632
1 467 509
392 518
10 625
5 207
154 988
904 171

b.
c.
d.

e.

iii.

f.

A.1.
A.2.
A.3.

D.1.
D.2.
D.2.1.
D.2.2.
E.1.
E.1.1.
E.1.2.
E.2.
E.3.
III.1.
III.2.
III.3.
F.1.
F.2.
F.3.
F.4.
F.5.

62

*
iv.
g.
v.
h.
vi.
i.
J.
vii.
K.

IV.1.
IV.2.
V.1.
V.2.
VI.1.
VI.2.
J.1.
J.2.

*
**

prior year
2015

profit or loss on operating activities (+/-)

305 746

290 549

income from long-term investments - interests
Income from interests in subsidiaries or parents
Other income from interests
cost of interests sold
income from other long-term investments
Income from other long-term investments - subsidiaries or parents
Other income from other long-term investments
expenses relating to other long-term investments
interest receivable and similar income
Interest receivable and similar income - subsidiaries or parents
Other interest receivable and similar income
value adjustments and provisions relating to financial activities
interest payable and similar expenses
Interest payable and similar expenses - subsidiaries or parents
Other interest payable and similar expenses
other finance income
other finance cost

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1 820
1 778
42
0
56 633
4 309
52 324
168 383
229 213

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3 246
3 151
95
0
62 708
1 927
60 781
387 384
557 447

-115 643
190 103

-229 525
61 024

150 950
150 950
0

23 211
23 211
0

39 153
0
39 153
5 978 731

37 813
0
37 813
5 701 241

profit or loss on financial activities (+/-)
profit or loss before taxation (+/-)

l.
L.1.
L.2.
**
m.
***
*

current
year

income tax
Income tax due
Income tax deferred (+/-)
profit or loss after taxation (+/-)
transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)
profit or loss for the year (+/-)
net turnover
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Financial statement
current
year

prior year
2015

cash flows from operating activities
Z.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

a *
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

2.
2.
2.
2.
2.
2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

a **
A. 3. 1.
A. 4. 1.
a ***
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profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-)
Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables
Change in allowances
Change in provisions
Foreign exchange differences
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest expense and interest income
Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received)
net cash from operating activities before taxation,
changes in working capital and extraordinary items
Change in non-cash components of working capital
Change in inventory
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, and in accruals and deferred income
net cash from operating activities before taxation,
interest paid and extraordinary items
Interest paid
Income Tax paid
net cash provided by (used in) operating activitie

current
year

prior year
2015

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Loans granted
Interest received
Dividends received

-243 577
21 008
-4 977
44
0

-324 877
446 583
35 737
2 451
0

net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

-227 502

159 894

-177 937

-483 997

0
0
-675

0
0
-599

-178 612
-306 423
499 036
192 613

-484 596
204 333
294 703
499 036

cash flows from investing activities
190 103
889 501
158 158
544 950
109 062
-28 439
-1 456
54 813
52 413

61 024
335 544
128 653
28 887
109 558
25 583
-54 065
59 462
37 466

B.
B.
B.
B.
B.

1 079 604

396 568

-895 691
166 098
-295 379
-599 112
80 592
-247 890

192 338
-630 381
274 019
-175 760
-149 358
873 817

C. 1.

Change in long-term liabilities, and long-term and short-term loans

C. 2. 1.
C. 2. 2.
C. 2. 3.

Effect of other changes in equity on cash
Profit shares paid
Effect of other changes in own capital on cash

183 913

588 906

-56 615
-27 607
99 691

-59 871

c ***
f.
p.
r.

net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
net increase (decrease) in cash
cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

b ***

cash flows from financing activities

529 035
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Notes to the financial statement
1. description of the company

2. basic of presentation of financial statements

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. ("the Company") is a joint stock company incorporated on December 15, 2011 under the name of TULAREO a.s. The Company’s registered office is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, postcode 250 70, Czech Republic. The business
registration number (IČ) is 24194204. The main subject of business of the Company is cooperation in producing helicopters and aircraft
parts, foreign trade in military products, development, production, repairs and modernization of military training and combat aircraft, aerial
work, and operation of Vodochody Airport.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act and the related guidelines as applicable for the
year 2016 and 2015. Based on the requirements of the amendment to the Accounting Act and the implementation decree in force since January 1,
2016 there has been a change in reporting of items of balance sheet and profit and loss account. To ensure the comparability of these items with the
previous accounting period, the items of balance sheet and profit and loss account for 2015 were appropriately reclassified. The company proceeded
in accordance with the Czech Accounting Standard for Businesses No. 024 "The comparative period for the accounting period started in 2016".

shareholders holding a 10-percent or more in the share capital:
TULAROSA a.s.
100 %

3. general accounting principles, accounting methods and variations of these methods

The parent company of the Company is TULAROSA a.s. with its registered office located at Na Florenci 2116/15, Prague 1, Czech Republic,
which is the sole shareholder of the Company. The parent company of the entire group is PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate financial statements for the period from January 1, 2016 until
December 31, 2016. Consolidated financial statements according to Czech accounting standards are prepared by OAKFIELD a.s., which
is the parent company of TULAROSA a.s. and the Company is a part of the consolidation unit of the group OAKFIELD a.s.
members of statutory bodies as at december 31, 2016:
Board of Directors
Member:
Ing. Petr Brychta
Member:
Ing. Dominika Kalinová
Supervisory Board
Chairman:
Member:
Member:

Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Ing. Jan Kříž
Jan Borýsek

In 2016, the following changes were registered in the public register:
• With effect from May 15, 2016 Ladislav Šimek has been suspended from the function of Chairman of the Board of Directors.
• On the basis of the contract of sale and purchase of a part of the plant dated December 28, 2015, the part of the company Vodochody
Airport a.s. with its registered address Odolena Voda - Dolínek, U Letiště 374, postcode 250 70, ID: 281 99 472 has been transferred
to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. The transfer was entered in the Business Register on May 6, 2016
• By decision of the sole shareholder of October 7, 2016, all the shares of the Company were converted to dematerialized shares.

The valuation methods applied by the Company in preparing the financial statements for 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
a) intangible assets
Intangible assets are recorded at acquisition prices, which include the acquisition purchase price and acquisition related costs.
Intangible assets over 60 thousand CZK is amortized to cost based on the assumed useful life of the particular asset. Small intangible fixed
assets (less than CZK 60 thousand) are valued at acquisition prices, they are expensed to cost as once and carried only in a subsidiary ledger.
Long-term intangible assets produced in the Company are valuated by own costs, which include direct material and labor costs and
production overhead costs.
Goodwill arose as the difference between the valuation of the business plant (or part thereof) acquired by transfer or transition for a compensation or by deposit or by valuation of assets and liabilities within the transformation of business corporations, except the change in legal
form, and the sum of the individually revalued components of the assets, reduced of assumed debt.
depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful life
is determined as follows:

Software
Goodwill
Patents, royalties and similar rights

Years
3
5
according to contract

If it is found during the inventory that the value of intangible assets is significantly lower than its value in the accounts, an adjustment
allowance is created for this asset. The costs of technical improvements of intangible fixed assets increase their acquisition cost. Repairs
and maintenance are accounted to cost.
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a) tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets over CZK 40 thousand are valued at acquisition cost, which includes the acquisition price, freight, customs duties and
other acquisition related costs.

e) receivables
Receivables are valued at nominal value. Valuation of doubtful receivables is reduced by adjustments to the debit of costs of their
realization value.

Tangible fixed assets produced in the Company are valued at own cost, which includes direct material and labor costs and production overhead cost. Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at reproduction acquisition price and it is accounted to the credit of the
other capital funds account.

f) derivatives
Derivatives are initially valued at acquisition prices. In the accompanying balance-sheet, derivatives are shown as part of other short-term
liabilities. Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging derivatives.

The reproduction acquisition price of these assets is set on the basis of its price at the time of the respective asset acquisition.The costs
of technical improvements of tangible fixed assets increase their acquisition cost. Repairs and maintenance are accounted to cost.

The hedging derivatives are arranged in order to secure real value or cash flow. In order to be possible to qualify a derivative as hedging, the
changes in the real value or changes of cash flow resulting from the hedging derivatives shall completely or in part compensate for the changes in the real value or the hedged item or for the change in cash flow resulting from the hedged item, and the Company shall document and
demonstrate the existence of the hedging relation and a high securing efficiency. In other cases, these are derivatives intended for trading.

depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition price and the estimated useful life of the particular asset. The estimated useful life is
determined as follows:

Constructions
Machinery, instruments and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other fixed tangible assets

Years
30 - 45
10 - 30
8 - 20
4 - 15
5 - 20

If it is found during the inventory that the value of tangible fixed assets is significantly lower than its value in the accounts, an adjustment
allowance is created for this asset.
b) financial assets
Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership interests and shareholdings.
Ownership interests and shares are valued at acquisition prices, which includes the acquisition price and direct costs related to the
acquisition, e.g. fees and commissions to brokers and stock exchanges.
As at December 31, ownership interests constituting dominant or significant influence are valued at the acquisition price. If there is
a decrease in the accounting value of long-term financial assets that are not revalued at to the end of the balance sheet date, the difference
is considered a temporary diminution in value and is recorded as an adjustment allowance.
c) finances
The funds consist of valuables, cash in hand and at bank accounts.
d) inventories
Purchased inventories are valued at acquisition prices using the weighted arithmetic average method. Acquisition price of the inventories
includes their acquisition costs including their acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc.).

As at the balance sheet date, the derivatives are revalued to the real value. Changes of real values of derivatives intended for trading are
accounted to financial costs or revenues. Changes in the real values of derivatives designated as securing the real value are also accounted in financial costs or revenues, together with the corresponding change in the real value of the secured asset or liability related to the
risk being secured. Changes of real values of derivatives classified as cash flow hedges are accounted to equity and reflected in the balance
sheet through gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is accounted directly to financial costs
or revenues.
g) equity
The basic capital of the Company is shown at the amount recorded in the Business Register of the Municipal Court. Any increase or decrease of the basic capital based on the decision of the General Meeting, which was not registered as at the balance sheet date, is recorded
as a change in basic capital. Contributions exceeding the basic capital are recorded as share premium. Other capital funds are created
on the basis of the Articles of Association of the Company. In compliance with the Business Corporations Act and with the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Company is no longer obliged to create a reserve fund.
h) foreign sources
Long-term and short-term liabilities are shown at the nominal values. Amounts found as a result of valuation of financial derivatives at real
value are also shown in the other liabilities item.
Long-term and short-term liabilities to credit institutions are shown at their nominal value. Considered as short-term liabilities to credit
institutions are also parts of long-term liabilities to credit institutions that are due within one year of the balance sheet date.
Contingent liabilities that are not shown in the balance sheet because significant uncertainty in determining their amount, title or fulfillment
deadline, are recorded in Note 18.
i) leasing
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease payments and capitalizing the corresponding value of the leased assets at the
time when the lease contract expires and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments paid in advance are accrued.

Products, semi-finished products and work in progress are valued at planned own costs, which correspond to actual own costs. Own costs
include direct material and labor costs and production overhead costs. Production overhead costs include energy, repairs and maintenance,
telecommunications, IT costs, depreciation and other services and materials, and they are allocated based on direct labor costs.
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j) foreign exchange operations
Assets and liabilities acquired in foreign currencies are valued in Czech crowns at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of their creation and at
the balance sheet date, items of monetary nature were valued at the exchange rates valid as at December 31 published by the Czech National Bank.

4. fixed assets

Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses are accounted in financial income or financial costs of the current year.

purchase price

a) intangible fixed assets (in cZK thousands)

k) accounting of revenues and costs
Revenues and costs are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, to the period, which they relate to as to material and time.
The Company accounts to the debit of costs creation of reserves and adjustments to cover all risks, losses and impairments that are known
as at the day of the balance sheet built.
Gains arising from long-term contracts are accounted only when the order is completed and invoiced in the manner laid down in the
contract concluded.
l) income tax
Expense for income tax is calculated using the applicable tax rate from the accounting profit increased or decreased by permanently
or temporarily non-deductible costs and non-taxable revenues (e.g. creation and accounting of other reserves and provisions, expenses
for representation, differences between book and tax depreciation, etc.). In addition, the following items are taken into consideration: tax
decreasing items (donations), tax deductible items (tax loss, research and development implementation costs) and income tax reliefs.
The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and calculation of the income tax taking into consideration the period of realization.
m) subsidies
The subsidies to cover costs are accounted upon receipt of the subsidy from other operating revenues observing the material matching and
accrual principles applied to accounting for the defined purpose. The subsidies for the acquisition of long-term intangible or tangible
assets and technical improvements, and the subsidies to cover interest included in the acquisition cost, either reduce the related acquisition price or own cost. Received subsidies are recorded by the Company in separate accounts so that it would be possible to monitor their
withdrawal and utilization.
n) use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported values of
assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the reported values of revenues and costs during the reporting period. The Company
management prepared these estimates and predictions based on all relevant information available to them. However, given the nature
of estimates, the actual values may differ from these estimates in the future.
o) subsequent events
The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of preparation of the financial statements, are reflected
in the financial statements in the case that these events provided further evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date.
In case that important events occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements taking into account facts
that occurred after the balance sheet date, the effects of these events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements but they are not
recorded in the financial statements.
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Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets in progress
Total 2016
Total 2015

opening
balance
245 281
99 112
1 166
150 034
495 593
678 282

additions

disposals

transfers

-13 915
144 452
130 537
64 207

-2 181
-2 181
-246 896

9 704
98 037
-107 741
-

closing
balance
254 985
194 968
-13 915
1 166
186 745
623 949
495 593

In 2016, the Company bought a part of the plant of Vodochody Airport a.s. Goodwill at the negative value of CZK -13,915 thousand arose as a difference
between the valuation of the part of the plant and the sum of the individually revalued components of assets reduced by the liabilities acquired.
provisions and accumulated amortiZation
opening depreciation
balance
Software
-228 204
-7 927
Patents, royalties and similar rights -59 998
-32 460
Goodwill
2 783
Other intangible assets
-586
-187
Intangible
assets in progress
Total 2016
-288 788
-37 791
Total 2015
-275 970
-15 510

sales

disposals
2 181
-

closing
balance
-236 131
-91 799
2 783
-773

adjustment
items
-19 270
-

book
value
18 854
83 899
-11 132
393

-1 522
-

-

-

-9 171

177 574

-1 522
-244 204

2 181
246 896

-325 920
-288 788

-28 441
-

269 588
206 805

Negative Goodwill is amortized evenly over a period of 60 months. In the profit and loss statement, the amortization is shown in other
operating income. In 2016, depreciation in the amount of CZK 2,783 thousand was recognized as revenue. The net book value of negative
Goodwill as at December 31, 2016 amounted to CZK -11,132 thousand.
Intangible assets in progress as at December 31, 2016 represents, in particular, the assets developed internally within the development
of the L-39NG and reconstruction of the L-159B aircraft. Intangibles in progress as at December 31, 2015 represent, in particular, the assets
developed internally within the development for the aircraft for the Brazilian company Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer).
The total amount of low value intangible assets not shown in the balance sheet amounted, as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, in the acquisition prices CZK 6,036 thousand and CZK 5,882 thousand. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the long-term intangible assets at the
acquisition price of CZK 264,473 thousand and CZK 216,725 thousand was fully depreciated.
The Company adjusted the valuation of the long term intangible assets for diminution in value through a provision charged to cost (see Note
7). The amount of provision as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to CZK 28,441 thousand and CZK 0 thousand.In 2015, disposal
and sale was realized of royalties at the acquisition cost of CZK 181,988 thousand, and of long term intangible asset in progress at the
acquisition cost of CZK 64,908 thousand, was performed on the basis of an agreement negotiated with the companies SHORT BROTHERS PLC
and Société Nationale De Construction Aerospatiale SA (Sonaca) within the business case Sonaca.
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b) tangible fixed assets (in cZK thousands)

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, tangibles in progress include in particular production tools for the Embraer project. As at December 31,
2016 and 2015, the total value of small tangible fixed assets, which are not shown in the balance sheet, including small tangible fixed
assets located at delivery stations, amounted at CZK 736,663 thousand and CZK 663,494 thousand in acquisition prices.

purchase price
opening
balance
18 206
1 071 450
1 765 596
232 629
9 384
13 451
304 007
5 759
3 420 482
3 356 163

Land
Constructions
Machinery, instruments and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other fixed tangible assets
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
Total 2016
Total 2015

additions

disposals

transfers

126 777
23 562
150 339
377 424

-14
-28 209
-1 056
-70
-25 612
-55 600
-313 105

20 677
64 466
11 658
814
-97 615
-

final
balance
18 206
1 092 113
1 801 853
243 231
8 675
14 265
333 169
3 709
3 515 221
3 420 482

provisions and accumulated amortiZation

Land
Constructions
Machinery, instruments and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other fixed tangible assets
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
Total 2016
Total 2015

opening
balance
-565 987
-1 143 096
-103 890
-7 917
-4 716
-1 825 606
-1 738 546

depreciation
-27 995
-73 334
-12 625
-1 095
-1 558
-116 607
-106 996

sales

disposals

-18 030
-18 030
-148 314

14
28 209
1 056
709
29 988
168 250

closing
balance
-593 968
-1 206 251
-115 459
-8 303
-6 274
-1 930 255
-1 825 606

adjustments
-117 911
-120 174
-43 664
-281 749
-124 260

book
value
18 206
498 145
477 691
7 598
372
7 991
289 505
3 709
1 303 217
1 470 616

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the long-term tangible assets at the acquisition price of CZK 805,373 thousand and CZK 809,897 thousand was fully depreciated. In 2015, there was realized disposal and sale of the property within the "Machinery, instruments and equipment" at the acquisition value of CZK 138,237 thousand, and of the tangible fixed assets in progress at the acquisition value of CZK 9,159
thousand, was based on the agreement negotiated with companies SHORT BROTHERS PLC and Société Nationale De Construction Aerospatiale SA (Sonaca) within the business case Sonaca.
The Company adjusted the valuation of the long term tangible assets for diminution in value through a provision charged to cost (see
Note 7). The amount of provision as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to CZK 281,749 thousand and CZK 124,260 thousand. As at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, a part of non-production buildings at the acquisition price in the amount of CZK 14,250 thousand and CZK 14,250
thousand and a net book value in the amount of CZK 5,951 thousand and CZK 6,307 thousand, were located outside the Company’s production plant (accommodation facilities).
As at December 31, 2016, the acquisition value of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 706,879 thousand and their net book value was CZK
344 890 thousand. As at December 31, 2015, the acquisition value of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 688,380 thousand and their net book
value was CZK 344,263 thousand. This burden is related to the framework contract on post-warranty support for the aircraft L-159 and L-39 (see Note
18) and it is not registered in the Land Register. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the acquisition and the net book price of the pledged assets to
loans provided amounted in CZK 142,446 thousand and CZK 86,154 thousand, and CZK 141,949 thousand and CZK 89,947 thousand respectively (see
Note 13). In 2016 and 2015, the Company received grants for tangible assets in the amount of CZK 0 thousand and CZK 80,257 thousand.

5. inventories
Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventories have been reduced to the selling price through the provisions account, which is shown in the
accompanying balance sheet in the correction column. The provision was determined by the Company management based on the analysis
of age of the inventories and their applicability in future periods (see Note 7).
adjustments to december 31, 2016
(in thousand cZK)
Ae
L-39
L-59
L-159
Sikorsky project
SONACA project
STELIA project
A321 project
Other inventories
Total

material
31 122
47 396
39 116
138 501
256 845
35 752
18 429
50 294
65 455
682 910

Work in progress
and semi-finished products
21 843
6 789
186
82 303
11 013
7 462
14 114
6 268
28 234
178 212

goods
46
24
70

prepayments
for inventory
3 050
153
3 203

Inventories of material nature and WIP are subject of collateral for bank loans in favor of the Czech Export Bank a.s. and Komerční banka,
a.s. (see Note 13). Of the total amount of prepayments for inventory in 2016 and 2015 in the amount of CZK 236,570 thousand and CZK
515,878 thousand, CZK 173,163 thousand and CZK 437,319 thousand respectively form deposits for the purchase from the Ministry
of Defense of the Czech Republic as part of the business case Iraq and Draken.
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6. receivables

8. finances

Outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful were provisioned based on the analysis (see Note 7).

As at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company had the following balances of accounts with restricted disposal (in thousand CZK)

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, receivables overdue for more than 180 days amounted to CZK 34,994 thousand and CZK 22,583
thousand. In 2016 and 2015, the Company ceded receivables in the amount of CZK 507,368 thousand and CZK 790,294 thousand. Revenues
from these receivables in 2016 and 2015 amounted to CZK 505,481 thousand and CZK 788,466 thousand. The nominal value of these
receivables and revenue from their assignment are shown in the accompanying profit and loss statement in other operating expenses,
or other operating income.
Estimated accounts active as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 include estimated items of unpaid interest on the loans to related parties
(see Note 21).
As at December 31, 2016, receivables from Sonaca, Sikorsky and Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) totaling CZK 285,814
thousand are subject of collateral for loans granted (see Note 13). As at December 31, 2015, receivables from Sonaca, Sikorsky and
Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) totaling CZK 49,768 thousand were subject of collateral for loans granted. Longand short-term receivables from related parties (see Note 21).

Adjustments reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets (shown in Notes 4, 5 and 6).

balance creation of accounting
december adjustment
of adjust31, 2014
item ment item
134 877
-10 617
454 740
86 322
-39 362
9 188
-4 677
332
-39
32 172
4 623
-7 363
631 309
90 945
-62 058

balance creation of
december adjustment
31, 2015
item
124 260
189 498
28 441
501 700
495 330
4 511
293
29 432
2 195
660 196
715 464

accounting
of adjustment item
-32 009
- 135 838
-1 308
-1 359
-170 514

balance
december
31, 2016
281 749
28 441
861 192
3 203
293
30 268
1 205 146

In 2016, the Company management decided to create provisions for fixed assets and inventories due to changes in the Company's strategy
regarding the termination of certain programs and uncertainties of duration of the S-76D helicopter production program. As at December
31, 2016, the value of thus created provisions amounted to CZK 227,095 thousand for inventories and CZK 167,642 thousand CZK.
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amount in thousand
of foreign currency
506
198
3 471
3 157

2016
amount
in thousand cZK
13 682
5 351
93 802
78 376
191 211

Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a security for guarantees granted by the banks (see Note 13). As at December 31, 2016 a 2015,
the Company deposited funds in the accounts in the amount of CZK 104,266 thousand and CZK 191,211 thousand. All bank accounts in addition to the above
mentioned bank accounts with restricted disposal are pledged in favor of Komerční banka, a.s. and the Czech Export Bank, a.s. (see Note 13).

On the basis of the Contract on the credit line of August 9, 2012 and the Amendments with Česká spořitelna, a.s., the company has the option to draw
an overdraft of up to CZK 50,000 thousand. In 2016, the loan was drawn down and repaid continuously, its balance as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 amounted to CZK 20,290 thousand and CZK 0 thousand (see Note 13). Deposits in accounts with related parties (see Note 21).

Changes in the provision accounts (in CZK thousands):

Tangible fixed assets
Intangible assets
Inventories
Advances on supplies
Receivables - legal
Receivables - other
Total

2015
amount
in thousand cZK
231
3 053
45 988
54 994
104 266

Based on the Framework Contract on the provision of financial services dated December 14, 2016 with the Komerční banka, a.s., the company
has the possibility to draw an overdraft up to the amount of CZK 120,000 thousand. In 2016, the credit was drawn and repaid continuously, its balance as at December 31, 2016 amounts to CZK 68,497 thousand (see Note 13).

7. adjustments

adjustment
items to:

bank
currency
ČSOB, a.s.
EUR
Komerční banka, a.s.
EUR
Komerční banka, a.s.
EUR
ČEB, a.s.
USD
Total

amount in thousand
of foreign currency
9
113
1 702
2 145

9. accrual assets
As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, prepaid expenses include in particular accrued rent, insurance premiums and overhead costs, which are
charged to the costs of the period, in which they belong as to material and time.
Complex prepaid expenses as at December 31, 2016 include mainly the accrued costs of development of the L-39NG and costs related to
the STA program; as at December 31, 2015 these mainly include costs for preparation and implementation of production under the Embraer
project for the Brazilian company Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. and development programs of the Defense & MRO division.
As at December 31, 2016, the accrued income amounted to CZK 843,049 thousand and they included mainly the conjecture of sales of the
Iraq business case in the amount of CZK 838,477 thousand. As at December 31, 2015, the accrued income amounted to CZK 178,046
thousand and they included mainly the conjecture of sales of the Iraq business case in the amount of CZK 172,875 thousand a the Latecoere
business case in the amount of CZK 3,892 thousand.
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10. equity

12. short and long term liabilities

As at December 31, 2016, the basic capital of the Company in the amount of CZK 1,002,000 thousand consists of 5,010 pieces of ordinary
registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 200 thousand, and it is fully paid. Other funds from profit are represented
by a social fund.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had short-term overdue liabilities totaling CZK 183,091 thousand and CZK 97,447
thousand. Estimated payables as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 include, in particular, unbilled supplies of material and services. They are
recognized in the period which they are related to as to material and time.

Differences from revaluation of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016, represent the revaluation of derivative transactions (see Note
15) and the revaluation of the share in the controlled company Clester Trading a.s. Revaluation differences from revaluation of assets and
liabilities as at December 31, 2015 represent the revaluation of the share in the controlled company Clester Trading a.s.

Advances received as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 include, in particular, the advances related to the sale of the L159
aircraft and advances related to the development of the L39 NG aircraft. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company records liabilities
from social security and health insurance within the due date in the amount of CZK 29,129 thousand and CZK 26,963 thousand.

On the basis of decision of the sole shareholder in the force of the General Meeting of June 30, 2016, distribution of profit for 2015 was
approved in the amount of CZK 37,813 thousand by transferring to the account of retained earnings.On the basis of decision of the sole
shareholder in the force of the General Meeting of July 10, 2015, distribution of profit for 2014 was approved in the amount of CZK 226,477
thousand by payment of accumulated losses in the amount of CZK 55 thousand, and by transferring the amount of CZK 226,422 thousand
to the account of retained earnings.

The company has with SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. concluded a credit agreement with a fixed rate. Status of loans from
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o. as at December 31 (in thousand CZK):

11. reserves
Changes in the provision accounts (in CZK thousands):
reserves

Business case Iraq
Business case STELIA
Business case Tunisia and Algeria
Reserve L39 flight hours
Bonuses and rewards to employees
On unpaid holidays
Business case Sikorsky
Business case Bulgaria
Business case Sonaca S.A.
Business case Alenia
Business case Black Hawk
Business case EMBRAER
Business case A321
Business case GBD Boeing
Business case Lithuania
Fines and penalties
Fines and penalties 159
Total
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balance as
at december
31, 2014
11 215
433
56 156
16 726
81 276
2 135
29 582
7 804
7 500
974
11 054
250
225 105

creating
reserves
113 037
592
24 772
68 608
17 234
4 217
55 440
4 406
2 240
699
498
291 743

clearance balance as
of at december
reserves
31, 2015
-63 238
49 799
-314
278
-3 466
32 521
433
-56 156
68 608
-16 726
17 234
-13 966
71 527
-1 068
1 067
-14 612
70 410
-1
12 209
-1 040
8 700
1 673
-11 348
204
-250
-182 185
334 663

creating
reserves
181 849
10 529
7 164
127 483
20 292
1 461
2 136
10 693
902
960
2 801
345
2 204
5 901
901
375 621

clearance balance as
of at december
reserves
31, 2015
-53 875
177 773
-522
10 285
-28 212
11 473
-433
-68 608
127 483
-17 234
20 292
-15 546
57 442
3 203
-73 926
7 177
-6 952
6 159
-1 140
8 520
4 474
-111
438
2 204
5 901
901
-266 559
443 725

SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o.
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o.
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o.
SG Equipment Finance Czech Republic s.r.o.
Total
Repayment in the following year
Repayments in future years

due date
October 15, 2017
November 15, 2019
December 15, 2019
4/2020

interest rate
1.025%
0.449%
0.449%
0.449%

2016
2015
amount in thousand cZK amount in thousand cZK
3 653
7 915
7 744
10 282
13 801
18 195
39 098
50 862
64 296
87 254
22 776
22 947
41 520
64 307

Long-term portion of loans is classified in the "Other long-term liabilities" line. Current portion of loans is classified in the "Other current
liabilities" line. As at December 31, 2016, other current liabilities include also negative real values of opened derivatives (see Note 15).
Payables to related parties (see Note 21).
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Within the above loan agreement for the financing of the Sikorsky and Black Hawk program, the Company committed to fulfill the following
financial indicators:

13. liabilities to credit institutions

bank

Komerční banka a.s.,
Česká spořitelna, a.s. and Československá
obchodní banka, a.s. as financing
of the Sikorsky and Black Hawk programs
Komerční banka, a.s.
"Reconstruction and refurbishing
of the composite center of AV" project
Komerční banka, a.s. – financing
of production cost of the Contract
for Work with ACR "Modification of L159"
Česká exportní banka, a.s.
– program Sonaca
Česká exportní banka, a.s.
– program Embraer
Komerční banka a.s.
– overdraft
Česká spořitelna, a.s.
– overdraft
Bank loans - unpaid interest
Total
Repayment in the following year
Repayments in future years

due date

interest
rate

overall
limit

december 31, 2016
amount
amount
in foreign
in thousand
currency
cZK

december 31, 2015
amount
amount
in foreign in thousand
currency
cZK

December
12, 2017

1M LIBOR
+ margin

980 000
thous. CZK

-

December
31, 2017

1M LIBOR
+ margin

60 000
thous. CZK

-

13 000

-

25 000

December
31, 2018

1M LIBOR
+ margin

290 000
thous. CZK

-

108 109

-

-

December 3M PRIBOR
31, 2021
+ margin
December 6M PRIBOR
31, 2022
+ margin
January O/N PRIBOR
2, 2018
+ margin
August
1M LIBOR
31, 2017
+ margin
n/a
n/a

378 000
thous. CZK
550 000
thous. CZK
120 000
thous. CZK
50 000
thous. CZK
n/a

-

283 440

-

330 733

-

524 382

-

550 000

-

68 497

-

-

-

20 290

-

21 807

-

1 997 718
1 194 100
803 618

-

5 318
2 140 970
1 325 371
815 599

980 000

49 546

1 229 919

As at December 31, 2016 the following pledges are in favor of the aforementioned loans:
• security of receivables (see Note 6),
• security of current accounts (see Note 8),
• blank bills issued,
• Guarantee issued by Penta Investments Limited up to the amount of CZK 378 mil.,
• security of inventories (see Note 5),
• security of shares of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. on the basis of an agreement with the parent company Tularosa a.s.,
• pledge of property (see Note 4b),
• pledge of movable assets (see Note 4b),

indicator name
Net debt
Credit coverage (interest period
after December 31, 2016)
Adjusted
debt indicator

description of calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA (including adjustments
relating to disposal / sale of inventories acquired prior to 2007)
(Net profit + depreciation + change in reserves and provisions
change in inventories - Change in short-term receivables + change in current
liabilities - CAPEX + cost interest) / (cost interest)
(Total liabilities - Subordinated inter-group loans - Received prepayments
– Deferred revenues) / (Total assets - Advance payments received
– Deferred future revenues)

required value
< 3,9:1
> 150%

< 65%

As at December 31, 2016, the Company meets the mentioned ratio indicators except of the adjusted debt indicator.
Based on the above-described loan contract for financing of the Embraer program concluded with the Česká exportní banka, a.s.,
the Company has undertaken to fulfill the following financial indicators:
indicator name
Net debt
Credit coverage (interest period
after December 31, 2016)
Financial lever

description of calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA
(including adjustments relating to disposal / sale of inventories acquired prior to 2007)
(Net profit + depreciation + change in reserves and provisions
– change in inventories - Change in short-term receivables
+ change in current liabilities - CAPEX + cost interest) / (cost interest)
Foreign sources / total assets

required value
< 3,9:1
> 150%
< 60%

As at December 31, 2016, the Company meets the mentioned ratio indicators except of the financial lever indicator.
Based on the above-described loan contract for financing of the Sonaca program concluded with the Česká exportní banka, a.s.,
the Company has undertaken to fulfill the following financial indicators:
indicator name
Net debt
Financial lever

description of calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA
(including adjustments relating to disposal / sale of inventories acquired prior to 2007)
Foreign sources / total assets

required value
< 3,2:1
< 55%

As at December 31, 2016, the Company meets the mentioned ratio indicators except of the financial lever indicator.

Total interest cost for all bank loans and special-purpose consumer loans received (see Note 12) for 2016 and 2015 amounts to CZK 52,324
thousand and CZK 60,781 thousand.
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Based on the above-described loan contract for financing of the Composite center concluded with the Komerční banka, a.s., the Company
has undertaken to fulfill the following financial indicators:
indicator name
Net debt
EBITDA
Financial lever

description of calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA
(including adjustments relating to disposal / sale of inventories acquired prior to 2007)
(Operating profit + depreciation + change in reserves and adjustments
- sales of fixed assets and materials + net book
value of sold fixed assets and material)
Foreign sources / total assets

required value
< 3,9:1
> 500 CZK
< 65%

As at December 31, 2016, the Company meets the mentioned ratio indicators except of the financial lever indicator.

14. accruals liabilities
Deferred revenues as at December 31, 2016 include deferred revenues related to business cases Iraq, Sikorsky, Alenia A321, STA and
Stelia and are charged to income in the periods in which they belong as to material and time. Deferred revenues as at December 31, 2015
include deferred revenues related to projects Sikorsky, Alenia A321 and Stelia.

15. derivatives
As at December 31, 2016, the Company has concluded hedging derivative, which the Company revalued to real value. The negative real value
of hedging derivatives is recognized in the balance sheet in other liabilities (see Note 12) and in the differences from revaluation of assets
and liabilities (see Note 10).
The following table summarizes nominal values and negative real values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at December 31, 2016 (in CZK thous.):

As at December 31, 2016, the banks provided the following guarantees (in thous. CZK):
bank
Komerční banka, a.s.

ČSOB, a.s.
ČEB, a.s.
Total

type of guarantee
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment

valid until
1/2017
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
indefinite
March 1, 2017
March 30, 2017
September 30, 2017

amount
1 977
1 000
24 860
2 702
4 709
2 013
946
2 702
4 709
4 729
2 040
153
168 487
419 514
640 541

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company guaranteed the issued bank guarantees with money in bank accounts with restricted
disposal in the amount of CZK 104,266 thous. and CZK 191,211 thous. (see Note 8).
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(thous. cZK)
Option
Hedging derivatives total

nominal
1 538 340
1 538 340

positive
-

2016
real value
negative
-41 066
-41 066

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that were entered into to manage currency and interest rate risk of assets and liabilities and meet
the criteria for hedge accounting.
The following table summarizes nominal values and negative real values of outstanding derivatives held for trading as at December 31,
2016 (in CZK thous.):

(thous. cZK)
Option
Swaps
Total trading derivatives

nominal
76 917
307 668
384 585

positive
1 631
1 631

2016
real value
negative
-5 109
-5 109

As at December 31, 2015, the Company had not entered into any derivatives..
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17. leasing

16. income tax

Profit before tax
Differences between book and tax depreciation
Non-deductible expenses:
- Change in provisions, net
- Change in reserves, net
- Shortages and damages
- Others (e.g. expenses for representations, assignment of receivables, contractual penalties)
Outstanding contractual penalties, paid contractual penalties from the previous periods
Deduction of expenses for research and development
Tax base
The rate of income tax
Tax
Adjustment of tax from previous years
Due tax

2016 (in thous. cZK)
190 103
-77 531

2015 (in thous. cZK)
61 024
-7 565

544 950
109 062
47 000
80 766
-74 581
819 769
19 %
155 756
-4 806
150 950

28 926
109 558
27 106
36 743
-9 384
-124 246
122 162
19 %
23 211
23 211

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the balance sheet (see Note 3j).
The assets leased by the Company under operating leases as at December 31, 2016 (in thous. CZK):
terms
Information technologies

until 2018

amount of lease
in 2016
5 833

amount of lease
in 2015
5 606

acquisition price
at the owner
25 308

Assets leased by the Company in a form of financial leasing (i.e. the lessee buys the assets when the lease term expires) as at December 31, 2016:
description

Machinery

terms

until 2021

the sum of lease
payments over the
expected lease
199 237

financial leasing rental
payments actually paid
as at december 31, 2016
107 729

schedule of future payments according
o the actual maturity as at december 31, 2016.
due within one year
due after one year
28 591
62 917

18. assets and liabilities not shown in the balance sheet
The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in thous. CZK)

deferred
deferred tax items
ax asset
The difference between the accounting
and tax carrying value of fixed assets
Other temporary differences:
Adjustments to receivables and advances on inventories
6 359
Adjustments to inventories
163 626
Adjustments to fixed assets
58 936
Reserves
84 308
Hedging derivatives
7 803
Total
321 032
Net
285 915

december 31, 2016
deferred
tax liability

december 31, 2015
deferred
deferred
ax asset
tax liability

-35 117

-

-16 370

-35 117
-

6 449
95 323
23 609
63 586
188 967
172 597

-16 370
-

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not record a deferred tax claim in the amount of CZK 285,915 thousand and CZK 172,597
thousand with respect of that its future recovery is uncertain.

The company routinely uses mediation services on a contractual basis. In case of concluding a business relationship with a customer,
an obligation results from these contracts to pay the provider the amount of income realized. This amount can not be determined until
the contract is concluded.
On December 8, 2005, AERO Vodochody a.s. entered into a master contract with the Ministry of Defense of the Czech Republic on after
warranty support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft, in which it committed to cooperate in the repair, maintenance, and modernization of the aircraft. The contract was signed for a definite period until January 2029. In the Project of separation, the contract was transferred to AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. In case of breach of contractual relationships, as well as in case of withdrawal from the contract, the Ministry
of Defense of the Czech Republic may demand from the Company a contractual penalty and then also claim possible damages exceeding
the amount of this penalty. Under the terms of this contract, the Company committed to limited disposal of a significant portion of its fixed
assets (see Note 4b).
The main production orders of the Company are dealt with in the context of long-term contractual relationships with suppliers. The value
of future obligations arising from contracts entered into as at December 31, 2016 amounted to CZK 1,242,663 thousand, of which supplies
for the Sikorsky project amounted to CZK 143,621 thousand. These contracts normally include a provision stipulating the amount of
compensations that the Company is obliged to pay if it fails to fulfill contractual obligations or if it withdraws from the contract. In addition,
the suppliers also do not accept responsibility for possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.
The Company has concluded insurance of liability resulting from its own flight operations, among other liability from the operation of aircraft including accident insurance, liability from the operation of hangars, liability from the operation of airport and navigational tower, liability
for damage caused by a defective product. For the insurance of liability for damage caused by defective products, the total limit is agreed in
the amount of USD 250,000 thousand with sub-limits for selected projects, of which USD 250,000 thousand for the Sikorsky project and USD
200,000 thousand for the SAAB project. This insurance is concluded with the worldwide validity and it covers most predictable risks arising
from aviation activities.
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21. related parties information

19. revenues

In 2016 and 2015, members of statutory and supervisory bodies and executive officers have received no loans, guarantees, advances and other
benefits, and they do not hold any shares of the Company.

The breakdown of revenues of the Company from ordinary activities (in CZK thousands):

domestic
377 623
30 056
407 679

Aerospace production
Non-aerospace production
Total revenues

2016
foreign
4 691 900
4 691 900

domestic
421 442
39 309
460 751

2015
foreign
3 510 248
3 510 248

The Company sells products and provides loans and services to related parties. In 2016 and 2015, revenues from these activities, including
interest revenues, amounted to CZK 6,267 thousand (of which interest revenues amounted to CZK 1,778 thousand) and CZK 13,547 thousand
(of which the interest revenue amounted to CZK 3,151 thousand).
Loans granted to related parties as at December 31 (in thousand CZK)

The prevailing portion of the revenues in 2016 and 2015 was concentrated on four major customers in the aerospace sector, which are
Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation, the Ministry of Defense of the Czech Republic, Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer) and the
Ministry of Defense of Iraq.
In the other operating income in 2016 and 2015, the Company records subsidies for operating purposes received from the state budget
in the amount of CZK 6,786 thousand and CZK 18,780 thousand.

spřízněná osoba
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Clester Trading a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
Total

- in CZK
- in EUR
- in EUR
- in EUR

lhůty
splatnosti/úročení
2018/4,02 %
2018/7,58 %
2018/7,58 %
2018/6,10 %

částka v tis.
původní měny
177
400
300

2016

2015

4 850
4 773
10 808
8 106
28 537

2
4 639
10 810
8 108
23 559

20. personnel expenses
On August 20, 2013, a loan contract was entered into between AERO Vodochody a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. in the amount
of CZK 100,000 thousand, and by Amendment No. 2 of August 18, 2016, the maturity was extended to August 30, 2018. The interest rate is fixed
at 4.02 %. The balance of this loan as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 amounted to CZK 4,850 thousand and CZK 2 thousand.

Breakdown of personnel expenses (in CZK thousands):

Average number of employees
Wages and salaries
Social security and health insurance
Social costs
Total personnel expenses

total number
of employees
1 869
832 528
272 201
15 948
1 120 677

2016
members of management
and supervisory bodies
5
16 157
2 151
57
18 365

2015
celkový počet members of management
zaměstnanců and supervisory bodies
1 839
5
747 381
9 146
245 320
1 262
16 346
136
1 009 047
10 544

In 2016 and 2015, the members of the management and supervisory bodies received by reason of their functions the remuneration in the total
amount of CZK 16,157 thousand and CZK 9,146 thousand.

On July 22, 2010, a loan contract was entered into between Clester Trading a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. in the amount of EUR
200 thousand, and by Amendment No. 4 of July 22, 2016, the maturity was extended to July 22, 2018. The interest rate is fixed at 7.58 %.
The balance of this loan as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 amounted to CZK 4,773 thousand and CZK 4.639 thousand.
On September 16, 2009, a loan contract was entered into between Clarex Investments a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. in the
amount of EUR 800 thousand, and by Amendment No. 5 of August 18, 2016, the maturity was extended to September 16, 2018. The interest
rate is fixed at 7.58 %. The balance of this loan as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, amounted to CZK 10,808 thousand and CZK
10,810 thousand.
On July 10, 2009, a loan contract was entered into between Clarex Investments a.s. and AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. in the amount
of EUR 485 thousand, and by Amendment No. 2 of August 18, 2016, the maturity was extended to December 31, 2018. The interest rate is
fixed at 6.10 %. The balance of this loan as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, amounted to CZK 8,106 thousand and CZK 8,108
thousand.
In 2015, Clarex Investments a.s. issued to the Company promissory notes in the total amount of EUR 428 thousand. Bills are due in 2017.
The company shows the bills as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 in the amount of CZK 11,559 thousand and CZK 11,560 thousand on the line
"Receivables - controlled or controlling person".
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Short-term receivables from related parties as at December 31 (in CZK thousands):
related party
Clarex Investments a.s. - interest in EUR (estimated item)
Clester Trading a.s. - interest in EUR (estimated item)
Letiště Vodochody a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
AERO Vodochody a.s. - interest in CZK (estimated item)
AERO Vodochody a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
AERO Vodochody a.s. - estimated item in CZK
AB Facility, a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
OAKFIELD a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
TULAROSA a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
Total

22. research and development costs
2016
1 317
2 080
1 556
98
738
900
38
10
9
6 746

2015
1 720
2 041
1 890
38
10
8
5 817

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the deposit of the Company at the accounts of the related party Privatbanka, a.s. amounted to CZK 107
thousand and CZK 112 thousand.
The Company purchases products, draws credit, and uses services from related parties within the ordinary course of business. In 2016
and 2015, these purchases including cost interest amounted to CZK 62,126 thousand (of which the cost interest amounted to CZK 4,309
thousand) and CZK 123,061 thousand (of which the cost interests amounted to CZK 1,927 thousand).
Loans provided from related parties as at December 31 (in thousand CZK)
related party
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Total

- in USD
- in Kč

maturity /
interest rate
2016/4,02 %
2018/4,02 %

amount in thousands
of the original currency
5 500
350 000

In 2016 and 2015, research and development costs amounted to CZK 254,302 thousand and CZK 267,292 thousand.

23. significant items of profit and loss statement
In 2016 and 2015, other operating revenues comprise in particular revenues from ceded receivables (see Note 6) and from received subsidies (see Note 19). In 2016 and 2015, other operating expenses include in particular the nominal value of ceded receivables (see Note 6), shortages and damages and insurance fees. Other finance revenue and expense in 2016 and 2015 include mainly exchange rate gains and losses.
Fees paid to statutory auditors for verification services are shown in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.

24. significant events after the balance sheet date
With effect from March 20, 2017, the sole shareholder decided to remove Ing. Petr Brychta and Ing. Dominika Kalinová from their positions
as members of the Board of Directors. With effect from March 21, 2017, based on a decision of the sole shareholder, Giuseppe Giordo was
elected as member of the Board of Directors. With effect from April 30, 2017, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Zdeněk Sýkora, was
removed from office, and with effect from May 1, 2017, Dominika Kalinová was appointed Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board.

25. statement of changes in equity (see note 1)
2016

2015

124 634
124 634

136 532
136 532

2016
2 309
1 760
16
1 905
6 141
1 890
14 021

2015
3 101
1 648
5 006
6 167
2 023
10 241
1 617
29 803

Short-term payables to related parties as at December 31 (thousand CZK):
related party
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s. (interest)
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
AB Facility, a.s. (prepayment)
AB Facility, a.s.
AB Facility Services s.r.o.
Total
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Giuseppe Giordo
President & CEO
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

Miloslav Kuch-Breburda
Accounting Manager
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

Eva Stelzerová
Chief accountant
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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Report on relations
among related entities
Report of the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. on Relations between the Controlling and the Controlled Persons and
Persons controlled by the same Controlling Person prepared in compliance with the provisions of Section 82-88 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll.,
on Corporations and Cooperatives (the "Corporations Act")

The below organigram shows the method how the Company is controlled by the Controlling Person. .

Penta Investments Group Limited (JE)

section i controlled and controlling persons

PENTA INVESTMENTS LIMITED (JE)
100%

Vodochody Holdings Limited (CY)

Penta Investments Group Limited
with its registered address at 3rd Floor, Osprey House, 5-7 Old Street, St Helier, JE2 3RG, Jersey

section ii reference period
This report was prepared for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

section iii
Structure of relations between the Controlling and the Controlled Persons and persons controlled by the same Controlling Person The Company and its directly or indirectly controlling persons and the companies controlled by the same Controlling Person, i.e. persons controlled
by Penta Investments Group Limited, are considered to be the persons controlled by the same controlling person.

100%

100%



Registration Number: 112 251

100%



controlling person



AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
with its registered address at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, zip code 250 70
Business registration number (IČ): 24194204
recorded in the Commercial Register maintained in the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, file No. 17749
(“the Company“)

OAKFIELD a.s.

SALORI HOLDING B.V (NL)

100%

TULAROSA a.s.

100%

Letiště Vodochody a.s.

100%

AERO Vodochody a.s.

100%



controlled person

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

100%

LV-Solar Vodochody a.s.

100%

Clester Trading a.s.
100%

Clarex Investments a.s.

The Controlling Person controls a number of other companies operating in various industries that are not included in the above organigram; they are persons controlled by the same Controlling Person in relation to the Company.
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section iv.
the role of the controlled person in the structure of relations between the controlling and the controlled persons and persons controlled by the same controlling person
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is an independent entity with a specific business in the Controlling Person´s ownership structure.
Therefore it does not ensure any activities for the remaining entities in the Controlling Person´s ownership structure and is not subject to
uniform management procedures and therefore does not form a group with the Controlling Person and other entities in the Controlling Person’s ownership structure.

section v.
method and means of control
The Controlling Person controls the Controlled Person in such a way that it holds 100% stake in AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. through
the company TULAROSA a.s. The Controlling Person implements its business interests through exercising its shareholder rights within the
Controlled Person´s supreme body including appointment of persons in the Controlled Person´s statutory bodies.

section vi.
an overview of acts carried out in the last reporting period at the initiative or in the interest of the controlling person or persons controlled by the same controlling person if such acts concerned assets, the volume of which exceeded 10% of the controlled person’s equity as
reported in the last financial statements.
No acts were carried out in the reporting period at the initiative or in the interest of the Controlling Person or persons controlled by the same
Controlling Person that would relate to assets, the volume of which exceeded 10% of the Controlled Person’s equity as reported in the last
financial statements.

section vii.
an overview of contracts or agreements entered into by and between the controlled person and the controlling person or between the
controlled persons
A. No contracts/agreements were signed by and between the Controlled Person and the Controlling Person in the reporting period.

B. The following contracts/agreement were made or were still effective between the Company and other persons controlled by the same Controlling Person in the period under review:

period from 1 January 2016 to 31 december 2016
entity
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Clester Trading a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
TULAROSA a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
TULAROSA a.s.
OAKFIELD a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
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title of contract
/agreement
Addendum No. 2 to the Loan
agreement dated 20 August 2013
Addendum No. 1 to the Loan
agreement dated 27 October 2015
Addendum No. 4 to the Loan
agreement dated 22 July 2010
Addendum No. 5 to the Loan
agreement dated 16 September 2009
Addendum No. 2 to the Loan
agreement dated 10 July 2009
Amendment no. 1 to Intercreditor
Agreement dated 16 July 2014
Amendment No. 2 to the Services
Agreement (general agreement)
Purchase contract
Lease agreement for lease of Neutralizing station dated 26 April 2013
Contract for the lease of a plot
of land dated 26 April 2013
Agreement for the lease of non-residential premises dated 7 February 2013
Services agreement
Services agreement
Services agreement
Contract for the lease of SM/297/LV
dated 31 December 2015
Contract for establishment of construction
Purchase agreement for transfer
of ownership between AVA and AV
Contract for establishment of servitude
Contract for establishment of servitude
Agreement for termination of contracts

date of
signing
18/8/2016

performance
rendered
Loan extension

performance contract
received
period
interest
30/8/2018

detriment
none

22/12/2016 Loan extension

interest

31/12/2018

none

22/7/2016

Loan extension

interest

22/7/2018

none

18/8/2016

Loan extension

interest

16/9/2018

none

18/8/2016

Loan extension

interest

31/12/2018

none

14/12/2016 Agreement extension

4/1/2016
26/4/2013

Se per agreement
or loan life
Agreement extension, adjust- consideindefinite
ment to service scope and price ration
period
Purchase of assets
consideration indefinite period
Lease of assets
consideration indefinite period

26/4/2013

Lease of real estate

7/2/2013

Lease of real estate

30/4/2013
2/1/2014
2/1/2014
31/12/2015

Provision of services
Provision of services
Provision of services
Lease of airport

1/1/2016

-

none
none
none
none

lease
payment
lease

indefinite period none

consideration
consideration
consideration
lease
payment

indefinite period
indefinite period
indefinite period
indefinite period

indefinite period none

10/11/2016 Establishment of building right
99 years
19/11/2015 Sale of plot of land
consideration
No. 288 of 1,080m2 size
29/4/2016 Establishment of servitude indefinite period
29/4/2016 Establishment of servitude indefinite period
31/01/2016 Termination of contracts

none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
none
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section viii.
assessment as to whether the controlled person suffered any detriment and assessment of counter-acts
The Controlled Person suffered no detriment as a result of actions taken by the Controlling Person in the period under review and therefore no assessment of counter-acts could be performed.

section iX.
advantages and disadvantages resulting from relations between the controlled person and the controlling person and persons controlled by
the same controlling person
The fact that a financial group with a strong capital position stands behind the Company is of a great advantage for it in both, relations with
financing banks from which the Company receives funding and relations with foreign customers to whom the Controlling Person may provide contractual support for their transactions.
No situation resulted from relation between the Controlling and the Controlled Persons in the reporting period that could be denoted as disadvantage in commercial or any other meaning.

section X.
conclusion
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. hereby represents that it has exercised due care and diligence in determining
relations between the Controlling and the Controlled Persons and persons controlled by the same Controlling Person for the purposes of
this report, primarily by soliciting information from the Controlling Person on the group of entities controlled by it in the given period.
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. hereby declares that all pecuniary performance and counter-performance rendered on the basis of the relations disclosed in Sections VII of this Report were made on an arm´s length basis. This Report was submitted to the Supervisory Board for its review and to the Company´s auditor who will perform an audit of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 within the meaning of special legislation.

In Odolena Voda on 31 March 2017
Giuseppe Giordo
Member of the Board of Directors
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
On 7 April 2017 the Supervisory Board reviewed the Board of Directors´Report on relations between the Controlling and the Controlled Persons and persons controlled by the same Controlling Person for 2016. The Supervisory Board agrees with the contents of the Report.

Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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